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“We welcome you!”

The City Council meetings the 2nd and 4th Monday of each month at 6:00 p.m.

in the City Council Chambers in City Hall, 300 Main Street

(unless the meeting falls on a State Holiday then subject to change by City Council)
For more information call 501-975-8617 or visit our website at www.nlr.ar.gov

Municipal Institutions Constitute the Strength of Free Nations.

2015

By A. de Tocqueville
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City Council Agenda | 2
July 27, 2015 Council Meeting 6:00 p.m.

“The City of North Little Rock welcomes people of diverse cultures and beliefs. Any religious viewpoint
expressed during invocation, or at any other time during the meeting, reflects only the personal opinion of the
speaker. It is not intended to proselytize, advance, or disparage any religious belief.”

COMMUNICATIONS
1. Karen Scott, Finance Director — list of Code Liens collected by Pulaski County
Treasurer — 2015.

2. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor’s Office memorandum re: Retail Beer on Premises — NEW
(add Growlers) for Old Chicago, 4305 Warden Road, by Gerald J. Parent.

3. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor’s Office memorandum re: Retail Beer off Premises &
Small Farm Wine — Change of Manager from Kevin Stephens, for Wal-Mart
Supercenter #4460, by Naeomi L. York.

4. Utilities Accounting Department Financial Statements with Independent Auditors
Report Years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 (Craft, Veach & Company, PLC).

PRESENTATIONS

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARING(S) 3 minutes
Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.

CITIZENS PUBLIC COMMENT ON NUMBERED LEGISLATION 3 minutes
Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.
INCLUDES ALL PUBLIC HEARINGS
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UNFINISHED BUSINESS

0-15-38 Mayor Smith
Establishing the Northshore Lane Multi-Purpose Municipal Improvement District
No. 36. (Gene Pfeifer IIl, and Matt Chandler — Named Commissioners)

Held public hearing held 6/22/2015

CONSENT AGENDA
R-15-104 Mayor Smith
Confirming the reappointment of Marie-Bernarde Miller to the Board of

Commissioners of Central Arkansas Water

R-15-105 Mayor Smith
Authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement
with Arkansas Department of Health for Renovations to Public Health Service
Facilities at 2800 Willow Street

R-15-106 Mayor Smith
Approving acceptance of a Grant awarded to the North Little Rock Fire
Department by FEMA under its staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency
Response (SAFER) Program

R-15-107 Mayor Smith
Declaring certain city-owned vehicles, outdated parts, and other equipment as
surplus; providing for auction thereof

R-15-108  Aldermen Ross and White
Accepting the donation of property located at 903 West 45" Street from the
Commissioner of State Lands
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NEW BUSINESS
RESOLUTIONS
R-15-109 Mayor Smith

Certifying the amount of a cleanup lien to be filed with the Pulaski County Tax
Collector against property located at 1805 Beech Street ($3,084.55)

convene a public hearing

R-15-110 Mayor Smith

Declaring certain buildings, houses and other structures located at 601 55
Terrace Drive to constitute a public nuisance and condemning said structures;

providing a period of time for property owner to abate said nuisance (owner:
Curtis Mclvor)

convene a public hearing

R-15-111 Mayor Smith

Declaring certain buildings, houses and other structures located at 2225 Fendley
Drive to constitute a public nuisance and condemning said structures; providing a

period of time for property owner to abate said nuisance (owner: Rafael
Guarionex DeCastro)

convene a public hearing

R-15-112 Mayor Smith

Declaring certain buildings, houses and other structures located at 2800 John
Ashley Drive to constitute a public nuisance and condemning said structures;

providing a period of time for property owner to abate said nuisance (owner:
Rafael Guarionex DeCastro)

convene a public hearing



City Council Agenda | 5
July 27, 2015 Council Meeting 6:00 p.m.

R-15-113  Mayor Smith

Declaring certain buildings, houses and other structures located at 522 West 22™
Street to constitute a public nuisance and condemning said structures; providing a

period of time for property owner to abate said nuisance (owner: Gloryland
Baptist Church)

convene a public hearing
R-15-114 Mayor Smith

Approving and certifying amounts of liens to be filed with the Pulaski County

Tax Collector against certain real properties as a result of grass cutting expenses
and abatement of other nuisances

convene a public hearing
ORDINANCES
0-15-59

Mayor Smith

Amending the Mid-Year 2015 Quota Ordinance (Ordinance No. 8750) for the
North Little Rock Fire Department

0-15-60  Mayor Smith for consideration only

Granting a Special Use to allow a Therapeutic Massage Clinic in a C-1 zone for
property located at 2525 Willow #1 (applicant: Craig Betts)

0O-15-61 Alderman Taylor

Amending Section 3.1 (Regulations Applying to All Districts) and Article 21
(Table of Permitted Uses of Ordinance No. 7697 (the Zoning Ordinance)
regarding Farming and the Keeping of Livestock)
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O-15-62  Aldermen Baxter and Foutch
To Reclassify property located at 6910 Dewaftflebakker Drive from I-2 to I-1 to
allow a Fitness Center, by amending Ordinance No. 7697

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS
All persons wishing to speak must have completed a public comment card and return it

to the City Clerk before this meeting is convened, speakers have 3 minutes to address
their topic

Respectfully submitted, <

Diane Whitbey, CAMC /M
City Clerk and Treasurer

Words to live by
The art of being wise is knowing what to overlook.
William James

For more information, visit our website at www.nlr.ar.gov.
To view council legislation, exhibits, etc., go the link above, then click on the
Government Tab, then select Council Agenda.





CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
LIENS COLLECTED FROM PULASKI CO. TREASURER - 2015

PM.

MONTH OWNER PARCEL # ADDRESS AMOUNT  MTHLY COLLECT YTD COLLECT ‘
January  Bertha Johnson 23N0460002800 N 1st St. 136.11 g
Joseph Baldwin 33N220000600 1600 N, Olive St. 136.00 .M. 4 (9]
Joseph Baldwin 33N2220002500 1522 N. Olive St. 136.00 WA /3 .JW,.
Sharonde Stokes 33N2550008500 141 College Park Cir 136.00 ~N (O o <]
Sharonde Stokes 33N2550008600 145 College Park Cir 136.00 Q / wh
*  23N0610029600 135.60 ,u/ N2 =3
James Jackson *  33N2730001400 1226 W. 11th. 371.15 7 ‘ M = m
Total Collected - January a W M W
Less: Treasurer's Commission m.hw_ m 54}
Net Amaunt Received-January 1,163.12 u Pl < D m
Plus: Treasurer's Excess Comm 804.31 = m a
¥-T-D Collections 1,967.43
February No Collections in February
Y-T-D Collections 1,967.43
March Rylwell LLC ** 23N0810001800 616 Mills St. 370.00
Alisa Brown ** 33N0140300800 6520 Corsica 185.00
Adriel Martin ** 33N2110037800 320 W. 14th St. 925.00
Adriel Martin ** 33N2560001300 720W.22nd St 555.00
Eddie Hart 23N0130006910 5410 Fairfax Dr 136.00
Linda Stricklin 33N0190108500 4607 Glenmere Rd. 136.00
Carlisle/Bray Ventures 33N2110036700 1306 Sycamore 136.00
Diane Bray 33N2110041800 Orange St. 136.00
NLR Housing Authority 33N2150006500 501 W. 25th St. 136.15
Katie Shirley 33N2890104300 1401 Olive St. 544.26
Barbara Royce * 34N0070000400 1102 E. Washington 677.75
Barbara Royce * 34ND070000800 1105 Arkansas Ave. 813.20
Barbara Royce *  34N0070000500 1100 E. Washington 271.10
Total Collected - March 5,021.46
Less: Treasurer's Commission
Settle Up Holdback (5%}
Net Amount Received-January 4,821.32
Y-T-D Collections 6,788.75
April James Sutton ** 23N0460004000 N H St., Lot 19 370.00
Renita Jackson ** 23N0610013500 412 Middle St. 185.00
Deandre Griffin ** 23N0650022400 704 Graham Ave. 370.00
Gregory McKinley Sr. ** 23N0650024200 920 Graham 185.00





CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
LIENS COLLECTED FROM PULASK| CO. TREASURER - 2015

MONTH OWNER PARCEL # ADDRESS AMOUNT  MTHLY COLLECT YTD COLLECT
Aumbray Hammonds Sr. ** 23N0770008300 4813 Rogers St. 3,055.63
Fed Home Loan Mortgage ** 24N0060014200 10 Puckett Dr. 185.00
Megan Finley ** 33N0100000700 54 Oakview Dr. 185.00
Charles Brouillette ** 33N0140131300 6217 Navajo Tr. 185.00
David Burke ** 33N0170005100 1613 Beresford Rd. 185.00
Justin Brewer ** 33N0181616000 3748 Loch Ln. 185.00
Shereecia Stancil ** 33N0190509700 3111 Lakeview Rd. 740.00
Hi-Five Properties ** 33N0380012800 719 W. 50th St. 555.00
Joseph D. Smith ** 33N0520000200 1935 Arrowhead Rd. 185.00
Pam Charton ** 33N0700001500 5110 Chandler St. 370.00
Vel Weaver ** 33N0710002400 5302 Pike 185.00
Christie Grandbois ** 33N0710005100 5206 Shaer 185.00
Lakesha Brton ** 33N1570005700 3820 Freeway Circle 185.00
Hi-Five Properties ** 33N1640002700 1215 W. 43rd St. 370.00
Luke Gee ** 33N1880016200 624 W. 35th St. 185.00
Barry Boswell ** 33N1890001400 810 W. 33rd St. 185.00
Charles Bradford ** 33N1930006600 304 W. 35th St. 370.00
Denise Pryor ** 33N1930020500 3912 Hillside Dr. 185.00
Thos Hall ** 33N2010000200 4524 Ridge Rd. 185.00
Hi-Five Properties ** 33N2190002900 1722 N. Magnolia 185.00
Vicki Bell ** 33N2500002700 1620 Parkway Dr. 185.00
Hi-Five Properties ** 33N2520016600 1721 W. 16th St. 185.00
Laverne Arnold ** 33N2550000400 308 W. 20th St. 370.00
Hi-Five Properties ** 33N2550007600 623 W, 18th St. 3,423.70
Octavio Guerrero ** 33N2550008900 209 College Park Cir 555.00
Nelson Properties and Estates ** 33N2640004600 1702 Nannette St. 4,271.68
Sec of VA ** 33N2670002300 185.00
Mark Jackson ** 33N3080016902 308 N. Hickory St. 185.00
Flodenco Enterprises * 23N0170022100 616 Dorothy Dr. 813.30
Marchal Properties *  23N0900002500 5 Bradburn Rd. 135.55
Jwana Hammonds * 33N3080017800 E 4th St.,Blk 19, Lot 2 542.40
Checkbuyers.com *  23N0130006939 3610 Russell Dr. 1,500.35

Total Collected - April 21,512.61
Less: Treasurer's Commission (4171 734
Settte Up Holdback (5%) 1926 .05)
Net Amount Received-April 20,174.83
Y-T-D Collections 26,963.58
May McAlmont Acquisitions ** 23N0211901700 5411 Fairfax 185.00
William Jones ** 34N0050002700 1400 E. Washington 3,553.37
McAlmont Acquisitions 23N0211901700 5411 Fairfax 408.15
Antonio Dominguez Ferrer 33N2110046800 213 E. 20th St. 136.11





CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
LIENS COLLECTED FROM PULASKI CO. TREASURER - 2015

MONTH OWNER PARCEL # ADDRESS AMOUNT  MTHLY COLLECT YTD COLLECT
Neil Lewis * 33N2700001200 1306 Parker 135.55
McAlmont Acquisitions * 33N1930018500 4402 Maple St. 1,148.95
Rylwell, LLC *  23N0810001800 616 Mills St. 271.20
Total Collected - May 5,838.33
Less: Treasurer's Commission (113.0%)
Settle Up Holdback (5%) (186 92)
Net Amount Received-May 5,538.38
Y-T-D Collections 32,501.96
June 1-40 Kerr, LLC ** 33N0190103400 4020 Glenmere Rd
Random Properties Acquisition ** 33N0710001700 5205 Schaer St.
Keisha Farrell ** 33N2550000200 W 20th St.
NLR Lots, LLC 23N0270003207 W, Emily St.
Total Collected - June
Less: Treasurer's Commission
Settle Up Holdback (5%)
Net Amount Received-June 604.06
Y-T-D Collections 33,106.02

* Denotes amount received from the State Land Commissioner

**Denotes property that was Holdback Eligible





CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
FEES COLLECTED BY CODE ENFORCEMENT - 2015

MONTH ADDRESS AMOUNT  MTHLY COLLECT YTD COLLECT
January S00E. 17th 809.67
N. 1St 185.00
1607 Washington 185.00
3320 Magnolia 185.00
5504 Ridgewood Ln. 185.00
5504 Ridgewood In. 185.00
1606 Sycamore 185.00
5401 Alpha 135.55
5401 Alpha 135.55
2,190.77
2,190.77
February 400 W. 19th 370.00
400 W 18th 370.00
Shirley Goodfow 135.55
875.55
3,066.32
March 1809 W. 16th 18500
185 00
3,25132
April NSt 135.00
185.00
3,436 32
May 1319 W 22nd 185.00
James Berry-Rest 53.60
1203 W, 25th 185.00
126 Farmere 185.00
1308 Sweetgum 185.00
3414 1/2 Parker 1,916.50
2,710.10
6,146.47
lune 209 College 185.00
919N, ! 185.00
806 N. H 185.00
4819 Pike 185.00
Lincoln 185 00
2917 Rogers 185.00
5207 E. Broadway 185.00
1420 N. Magnolia 185.00
209 N. Hickory 185.00
10201 135860
1717 Maple St 185.00
1813 W, Long 17th 185.00
2,170.60

8,317,02
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NORIH LITTLE FOPI’
JOE A. SMITH PHONE (501) 975-8601
MAYOR FAX (501) 975-8633
mayor@nlr.ar.gov
CITY HALL
P.0. BOX 5757

NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72119-5757
website: www.nlr.ar.gov

MEMORANDUM
TO: Members of the North Little Rock City Council
FROM: Glinda Craigmyle /¢~
DATE: July 17, 2015
SUBJECT: Alcoholic Beverages Permit Request

For your information, I have enclosed a copy of the Assignment and Comments of
Officials form from the State of Arkansas, Alcoholic Beverage Control Division.

The following applicant has applied for a new on premises retail beer permit, add
Growler Endorsement to Permit #02426:

Gerald J. Parent

Old Chicago of North Little Rock
4305 Warden Road

North Little Rock, AR

Please note the 15 day comment period referred to in the final paragraph of the
Comment page.

Thank you.

Attachments

“An Equal Opportunity Employer”





P. O Box 1285
Cabot, AR 72023
501-605-1175

July 13, 2015

Alcoholic Beverage Control Administration
1515 West 7" Street, Suite 503
Little Rock, AR 72201

Dear Director Roberts,

I would like to request to add “Growler Endorsement” at our location in North Little Rock, AR.
Old Chicago of North Little Rock

Permit # 02426

4305 Warden Road

North Little Rock, AR

Individual an Permit: Gerald Parent

Thank you for considering this request.

Sincerely,
Gerald Parent

FILED_______AM. &.7("/0 e
AUy ) - W v l/..a_ I
R B

Diane Whitbey, Ciey Clerk and Colloctor
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Date Received: 07/13/2015 Date Assigned: 07/14/2015

Applicant: GERALD J. PARENT D.0O.B: 01/01/1960

Green Card Number (Permanent Resident Alien):

Home Address: 100 Commercial Park Court, Apt. 147, Maumelle, AR, 72113
Home Phone: Business Phone: 501-259-5810 Cell Phone: 501-538-6217

Trade Name: OLD CHICAGO

Former Trade Name:

Business Address : 4305 Warden Road, North Little Rock County pylaski

Type Of Investigation: Retail Beer on Premises - NEW

Dancing, if requested:

Comments / Remarks : "Growler Endorsement"”

Copies Of Assignmentand Mayor Joe Smith & City Council
Comment Form Mailed to:

Michael Davis, Chief of Police
Doc Holladay, Sheriff

Larry Jegley, Prosecuting Attorney

Assigned to Investigator:

Stockholders / Partners / LLC
Members:





NEWCPUBO101 Im ! IH”
ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL DIVISION I i
COMMENTS OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS

APPLICANT'S NAME: GERALD J. PARENT

TYPE OF APPLICATION: Retail Beer on Premises - NEW

BUSINESS NAME: QLD CHICAGO

BUSINESS ADDRESS: 4305 Warden Road, North Little Rock, AR, 72116

DATE OF APPLICATION: 07/13/2015

NAME OF PUBLIC OFFICIAL:

TITLE OF OFFICIAL:

OFFICIAL MAILING ADDRESS:

PHONE :

SIGNATURE OF OFFICIAL: DATE:

NAME OF AGENCY OR COURT.:

Do you have any objections to the issuance of this permit?

(YesorNo)

If yes, please explain your objections below:

To ensure your comments are available at the time this application is considered by the Director, please complete
and return this form to ABC Administration, 1515 West 7th Street, Suite 503, Little Rock, AR, 72201, within fifteen (15) days
of receipt. In compliance with the Freedom of Information Act,this Comment Form will become a matter of public
record.

Printed On: 07/14/2015 Revised 10/5/07






OFFICE OF THE MAYOR
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% NR

NORTH LITTLE ROCK

JOE A. SMITH V‘ ‘V PHONE (501) 975-8601
MAYOR FAX (501) 975-8633
mayor@nir.ar.gov
CITY HALL
P.O. BOX 5757

NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72119-5757
website: www.nlr.ar.gov

MEMORANDUM
TO: Members of the North Little Rock City Council
FROM: Glinda Craigmyle hf/
DATE: July 20, 2015
SUBJECT: Alcoholic Beverages Permit Request

For your information, I have enclosed a copy of the Assignment and Comments of
Officials form from the State of Arkansas, Alcoholic Beverage Control Division.

The following applicant has applied for an off premises retail beer and small farm
winery permit with a change of manager from Kevin Stephens:

Naeomi L. York

Wal-Mart Supercenter #4460
12001 Maumelle Blvd.
North Little Rock, AR

Please note the 15 day comment period referred to in the final paragraph of the
Comment page.

Thank you.

Attachments

FILED am_Z SSm
nvgw//"t ":?-/5‘}1%" = ”“Ad’//ﬂ/)ﬂ
DAT;E 0?/¢? J /RO )

Diene Whitbey, City Cletk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas
RECEIVED by~ V) /LS -

"An Equal Opportunity Employer”
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Date Received: 06/24/2015 Date Assigned: 07/13/2015
Applicant: NAEOMI L. YORK D.0.B: 07/26/1986

Green Card Number (Permanent Resident Alien):

Home Address: 134 Chambery Road, Maumelle, AR, 72113

Home Phone: Business Phone: 501-851-6102 Cell Phone: 931-217-7768
Trade Name: WAL-MART SUPERCENTER #4460

Former Trade Name: WAL-MART SUPERCENTER #4460

Business Address : 12001 Maumelle Blvd., North Little Rock County Pulaski

Type Of Investigation: Retail Beer off Premises & Small Farm Wine - Change of Manager from
Kevin Stephens
01456

Dancing, if requested:

Comments / Remarks :

Copies Of Assignment and Mayor Joe Smith & City Council
Comment Form Mailed to:

Michael Davis, Chief of Police

Doc Holladay, Sheriff

Larry Jegley, Prosecuting Attorney

Assigned to Investigator:

Stockholders / Partners / LLC
Members:
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ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE CONTROL DIVISION I v
COMMENTS OF PUBLIC OFFICIALS

APPLICANT'S NAME: NAEOMI L. YORK

TYPE OF APPLICATION: Retail Beer off Premises & Small Farm Wine - Change of Manager from Kevin
Stephens

BUSINESS NAME: WAL-MART SUPERCENTER #4460

BUSINESS ADDRESS: 12001 Maumelle Blvd., North Little Rock, AR, 72113

DATE OF APPLICATION: 06/24/2015

NAME OF PUBLIC OFFICIAL:

TITLE OF OFFICIAL:

OFFICIAL MAILING ADDRESS:

PHONE :

SIGNATURE OF OFFICIAL: DATE:

NAME OF AGENCY OR COURT:

Do you have any objections to the issuance of this permit?

{Yes orNo)

If yes, please explain your objections below:

To ensure your comments are available at the time this application is considered by the Director, please complete
and return this form to ABC Administration, 1515 West 7th Street, Suite 503, Little Rock, AR, 72201, within fifteen (15) days
of receipt. In compliance with the Freedom of Information Act,this Comment Form will become a matter of public
record.

Printed On: 07/13/2015 Revised 10/5/07






UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
WITH
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'’S REPORT

YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

FILED (0 7<_AM. M.

oare. WIS o
Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Cullegt?r
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CRAFT, VEACH & COMPANY, PLC

CERTTHELED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Members of the American Tnstitute of Certified Public Accountants

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the City Council of the
City of North Little Rock, Arkansas

We have audited the accompanying statements of net position of the Utilities Accounting Department of the City of
North Little Rock, Arkansas (the UAD) as of December 31, 2014 and 2013, and the related statements of revenues,
expenses and changes in net position and cash flows for the years then ended.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation,
and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit
in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards require
that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free
of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion.
An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.
Opinion
In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Utilities Accounting Department of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas as of December 31, 2014 and 2013,

and the changes in financial position and cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 1, the financial statements present only the Utilities Accounting Department of the City of North
Little Rock, Arkansas and do not purport to, and do not, present fairly the financial position of the City of North Little
Rock, Arkansas, the changes in its financial position, or, where applicable, its cash flows for the years then ended in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Our opinion is not modified
with respect to this matter.

Craft, Veach & Company, PLC
North Little Rock, Arkansas
June 19, 2015

P.O. Box 13986 @ Maumelle, \R 72113 | 8410 Counts Massic Road ® North Little Rock, AR 72113 | (501) 753-0808 |lax (501) 753-6706





UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash
Certificates of deposit
Restricted cash and investments — current
Accounts receivable:
Collection fees
Other
Prepaid expenses
Total current assets
Noncurrent assets:
Noncurrent cash and investments:
Cash - restricted
Certificates of deposit — restricted
Accrued interest

Less amount required to meet current obligations
Total noncurrent cash and investments
Capital assets:

Equipment

Less accumulated depreciation
Total capital assets, net

Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable:
Other city departments and governmental agencies
Current portion of customer deposits
Accrued expenses
Total current liabilities
Noncurrent liabilities:
Interest earned on restricted investments
Customer deposits, less current portion
Total noncurrent liabilities

Total liabilities

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Unrestricted

Total net position

Total liabilities and net position

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

2014 2013

S 579,566 1,129,609
965,755 964,023
1,207,545 930,264
207,537 204,457
3,316 3,238
143,712 81,404
3,107,431 3,312,995
1,937,184 1,653,573
2,459,671 2,450,000
7,012 7,858
4,403,867 4,111,431
(1,207,545) (930,264)
3,196,322 3,181,167
1,247,076 1,004,278
(907,151) (816,453)
339,925 187,825
3,536,247 3,368,992
6,643,678 6,681,987
211,061 283,318
1,207,545 930,264
392,683 371,997
1,811,289 1,585,579
5,159 9,578
3,122,587 3,114,062
3,127,746 3,123,640
4,939,035 4,708,219
339,925 187,825
1,364,718 1,784,943
1,704,643 1,572,768
S 6,643,678 6,681,987






UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES
AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

Operating revenues:
Collection
Other

Total operating revenues

Operating expenses:
Salaries
Payroll taxes
Employee benefits
Insurance
Postage
Professional services
Supplies
Telephone

Maintenance — equipment

Depreciation
Miscellaneous
Utilities

Total operating expenses

Operating income (loss)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses):

Investment income

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses)

Change in net position

Net position, beginning of year

Net position, end of year

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

2014 2013

$ 2357,78 $ 2,359,970
40,325 49,045
2,398,114 2,409,015
1,393,125 1,298,096
100,951 97,335
332,371 336,921

13,572 15,805

160,882 143,532

7,000 7,000

72,778 75,267

40,814 17,047

301,687 368,111

90,698 71,268

31,795 57,338

126,150 126,619
2,671,823 2,614,339
(273,709) (205,324)

5,584 6,010

5,584 6,010
(268,125) (199,314)
1,972,768 2,172,082

S 1,704,643 § 1,972,768






UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from other governments
Payments to employees
Payments to vendors
Net cash flows provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income
Net change in certificates of deposit
Purchases of equipment
Net cash flows provided (used) by investing activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Net change in customer deposits
Net cash flows provided (used) by noncapital financing activities

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents - beginning of the year
Cash and cash equivalents - end of the year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to
net cash provided (used) by operating activities:
Operating income (loss)
Iltem not requiring cash:
Depreciation
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable
Prepaid expenses and accrued interest
Accounts payable, accrued expenses and
interest earned on restricted investments
Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.

2014 2013
$ 2394956 $ 2,419,852
(1,773,698) (1,729,550)
(924,879) (877,476)
(303,621) (187,174)
5,584 6,010
(11,403) (1,772)
(242,798) (94,318)
(248,617) (90,080)
285,806 391,587
285,806 391,587
(266,432) 114,333
2,783,182 2,668,849
$ 2,516,750 S 2,783,182
$  (273,709) S (205,324)
90,698 71,268
(3,158) 10,837
(61,462) 18,999
(55,990) (82,954)
S (303,621) S (187,174)






UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of Operations and Reporting Entity

The Utilities Accounting Department (the UAD) of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, provides billing and
collection services for the North Little Rock Electric, Sanitation and Recycling departments and certain other
governmental agencies and utilities in Pulaski County, Arkansas. Collections are remitted regularly to these
departments and districts. The UAD generates revenue by charging a collection fee based on the number of bills
rendered. These financial statements present only the UAD, an internal service fund, and are not intended to present
the financial position or changes in financial position of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas (the City).

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United
States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the
reported amounts of revenues and expense during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Basis of Accounting

The financial statements of the UAD have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting using the economic
resources measurement focus. Revenues, expenses, gains, losses, assets and liabilities are recognized when exchange
transactions take place. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services in connection with
the principal ongoing operations of the UAD. All revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as
nonoperating revenues (expenses) in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position.

The UAD has adopted GASB Statement No. 62, Codification of Accounting and Reporting Guidance Contained in Pre-
November 30, 1989 FASB and AICPA Pronouncements, which incorporates Financial Accounting Standards Board
(FASB) pronouncements and Accounting Principles Board (APB) opinions issued on or before November 30, 1989, to
the extent that those pronouncements or opinions do not conflict with or contradict guidance of the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board.

Statement of Cash Flows
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the UAD considers all highly liquid instruments purchased with an
original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents.

Investments

Investments are comprised of certificates of deposit and are valued at the lower of cost or fair value. Investment
income includes interest income and is reflected as other income in the statements of revenues, expenses and
changes in net assets.

Accounts Receivable

Accounts receivable are stated at the amount billed to entities for which the UAD provides billing and collection
services. Accounts receivable are ordinarily due 14 days after the issuance of the invoice. Accounts past due for more
than 30 days are considered delinquent. Delinquent receivables are written off based on individual credit evaluation
and specific circumstances of the customer.

Risk Management

The UAD is exposed to various risks of loss from torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of assets; business
interruption; errors and omissions; employee injuries and iliness; natural disasters; and employee health and accident
benefits.





UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 1: SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Risk Management (continued)

The UAD has joined together with other governmental services to form the Arkansas Municipal League (the Poal), a
public entity risk pool currently operating as a common risk management and insurance program for its members.
The UAD pays an annual premium to the Pool for its insurance coverage.

The Pool’s governing agreement specifies that the Pool will be self-sustaining through member premiums and will
reinsure through commercial carriers for claims in excess of specified stop loss amounts. Settled claims have not
exceeded this commercial coverage in any of the three preceding years, nor has there been a significant reduction in
coverage during the fiscal year.

Compensated Absences

The UAD policies permit most employees to accumulate vacation and sick leave benefits that may be realized as paid
time off or, in limited circumstances, as a cash payment. The expense and related liability are recognized as vacation
benefits as earned whether the employee is expected to realize the benefit as time off or in cash. The expense and
related liability for sick leave benefits are recognized when earned to the extent the employee is expected to realize
the benefit in cash determined using the termination payment method. Sick leave benefits expected to be realized as
paid time off are recognized as expense when the time off occurs and no liability is accrued for the benefits
employees have earned but not yet realized. Compensated absence liabilities are computed using the regular pay and
termination pay rates in effect at the date of the Statement of Net Position. Accrued expenses on the Statements of
Net Position include liabilities for compensated absences in the amount of $242,420 and $209,458 at December 31,
2014 and 2013, respectively.

Net Position

Net investment in capital assets consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the
outstanding balances of any borrowings used to finance the acquisition, construction, or improvement of those
assets. Net position is reported as restricted when they are to be used for a particular purpose as specified by
creditors, grantors, or donors external to the UAD, including amounts to be deposited with trustees as required by
bond indentures, reduced by the outstanding balances of any related liabilities. The UAD’s policy is to first apply
restricted resources when an expense or outlay is incurred for purposes for which both restricted and unrestricted
net position is available.

Income Taxes

As a governmental function of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, the UAD is exempt from income taxes under
Section 115 of the Internal Revenue Code and a similar provision of state law. However, the UAD is subject to federal
income tax on any unrelated business taxable income.

Date of Management’s Review
Management has evaluated subsequent events through June 19, 2015, the date on which the financial statements
were available to be issued.

Recently Adopted Accounting Standards
For the year ended December 31, 2014, the UAD implemented the following Governmental Accounting Standards
Board (GASB) Statement:

GASB Statement No. 67 — Financial Reporting for Pension Plans — An Amendment of GASB Statement No. 25, issued
June 2013, became effective for the UAD for the year ending December 31, 2014. This Statement improves financial
reporting by state and local governmental pension plans and replaces the requirements of GASB Statement No. 25,
Financial Reporting for Defined Benefit Pension Plans and Note Disclosures for Defined Contribution Plans, and GASB
Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans that are administered through trusts or
equivalent arrangements that meet certain criteria. The adoption of this statement did not have a material impact on
the UAD’s financial statements or related disclosures.





UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 2: DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENT INCOME

Deposits

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a bank failure, a government’s deposits may not be returned to it.
The UAD’s deposit policy is to require collateralization of all deposits in excess of federal depository insurance. At
December 31, 2014 and 2013, $4,631,372 and $6,361,440 respectively, of the UAD’s bank balances of $5,381,372 and
$6,861,440 respectively, were uninsured but were collateralized by the pledging financial institution. There were no
bank balances uninsured and uncollateralized at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Investment Income
Investment income consisted of interest income of $5,584 and 56,010 for 2014 and 2013, respectively.

Summary of Carrying Values
The carrying values of bank deposits are included in the Statements of Net Position as follows:

2014 2013
Carrying value:
Deposits S 5,942,176 ) 6,197,205
Included in the following Statement of Net Position captions:
Current assets - cash 579,566 1,129,609
Current assets - certificates of deposit 965,755 964,023
Restricted cash and investments:
Cash 1,937,184 1,653,573
Certificates of deposit 2,459,671 2,450,000

S 5,942,176 S 6,197,205

NOTE 3: CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation. The UAD uses the straight-line method of
depreciation in allocating the cost of the capital assets and equipment to operations over estimated useful lives of 5
to 10 years.

Capital asset activity for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 was as follows:

2014
Beginning
Balance Increase Decrease Ending Balance
Capital assets at historical cost:

Equipment S 1,004,278 S 242,798 S = S 1,247,076
Less: Accumulated depreciation (816,453) (90,698) - (907,151)
Total capital assets, net S 187,825 S 152,100 S - S 339,925

2013
Beginning
Balance Increase Decrease Ending Balance
Capital assets at historical cost:

Equipment $ 965,669 5 94,318 5 (55,709)  $ 1,004,278
Less: Accumulated depreciation (800,894) (71,268) 55,709 (816,453)
Total capital assets, net S 164,775 S 23,050 S - S 187,825






UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 4: ACCOUNTS PAYABLE — OTHER CITY DEPARTMENTS AND GOVERNMENTAL ENTITIES

Accounts payable to other City departments and governmental entities for the years ended December 31, 2014 and
2013 consisted of the following:

December 31, 2014 Electric Recycle Sanitation Total

Collected and uncollected
billings to customers S 4,315,734 S 6,730 S 70,281 S 4,392,745

Uncollected billings to customers (4,108,214) (6,401) (67,069) (4,181,684)

Accounts payable - other City departments
and sewer districts S 207,520 S 329 S 3,212 S 211,061

December 31, 2013 Electric Recycle Sanitation Total

Collected and uncollected
billings to customers $ 4,711,240 S 74,247 S 7,824 S 4,793,311

Uncollected billings to customers (4,431,877) (70,761) (7,355) (4,509,993)

Accounts payable — other City departments
and sewer districts S 279,363 S 3,486 S 469 S 283,318

NOTE 5: OTHER POSTRETIREMENT BENEFIT PLANS

City employees assigned to the UAD participate in the annual other post-employment benefit (OPEB) plan sponsored
by the City (the Plan). Statement No. 45 of the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, Accounting and Financial
Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions (GASB 45), requires that employers
providing post-employment benefits other than pensions record and disclose annual OPEB cost and net OPEB
obligation in their financial statements and disclose other information about their OPEB plans, including the unfunded
actuarial accrued liability (UAAL).

The Plan allows employees to continue health insurance coverage beyond retirement. Although retirees are required
to pay 100% of the group premium for continued coverage, the higher cost of covering retirees results in a subsidy to
those retirees, which is reflected in the recorded OPEB cost.

The UAD recorded an OPEB cost of $11,149 for 2014 and $11,264 for 2013, and a net OPEB obligation of $103,940
and $92,791 at December 31, 2014 and 2013, respectively. The UAD’s share of the UAAL at January 1, 2015 (the most
recent actuarial valuation date) was $29,580 and is not recorded in the financial statements. The UAAL will be
included in the annual OPEB cost over an amortization period of 30 years. The OPEB obligation and UAAL were
computed using a discount rate of 5.5% and a healthcare cost inflation rate, which begins at 10.0% and decreases
over a period of nine years to an ultimate rate of 5.0%. Additional plan disclosures required by GASB 45 may be found
in the 2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas.





UTILITIES ACCOUNTING DEPARTMENT NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2014 AND 2013

NOTE 6: PENSION PLANS

Certain employees of the UAD are covered by the “Retirement System of the City of North Little Rock (Non-Uniform
Employees)”. The provisions of the plan call for employee contributions of 4% of gross earnings to be paid through
payroll withholdings. Each month, the UAD contributes 6% of each employee’s respective monthly compensation.
Pension expense reflected in the financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013, was $77,353
and $72,989, respectively. Additional disclosures regarding funding status and composition of the pension benefit
obligations are contained in the 2014 Comprehensive Annual Financial Report of the City of North Little Rock,
Arkansas.

NOTE 7: NEW GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARD (GASB) PRONOUNCEMENTS

The GASB has issued the following standards that are required to be adopted by the UAD:

GASB Statement No. 68 — Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions — An Amendment of GASB Statement No.
27, issued June 2013, will be effective for the UAD for the year ending December 31, 2015. The objective of this
Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. This
Statement replaces the requirements of GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and Local
Governmental Employers, and GASB Statement No. 50, Pension Disclosures, as they relate to pension plans that are
covered by the scope of the Statement. Management of the UAD has not yet determined the impact that adoption of
this statement will have, if any, on the UAD’s financial statements or related disclosures.

GASB Statement No. 71 — Pension Transition for Contributions Made Subsequent to the Measurement Date—an
amendment of GASB Statement No. 68, issued November 2014, will be effective for the UAD for the year ending
December 31, 2015. The objective of this Statement is to address an issue regarding application of the transition
provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to amounts
associated with contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or nonemployer contributing
entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the measurement date of the government’s beginning net pension
liability. Management of the UAD has not yet determined the impact that adoption of this statement will have, if any,
on the UAD’s financial statements or related disclosures.
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City Council Agenda | 2
July 27, 2015 Council Meeting 6:00 p.m.

“The City of North Little Rock welcomes people of diverse cultures and beliefs. Any religious viewpoint
expressed during invocation, or at any other time during the meeting, reflects only the personal opinion of the
speaker. It is not intended to proselytize, advance, or disparage any religious belief.”

COMMUNICATIONS
1. Karen Scott, Finance Director — list of Code Liens collected by Pulaski County
Treasurer — 2015.

2. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor’s Office memorandum re: Retail Beer on Premises — NEW
(add Growlers) for Old Chicago, 4305 Warden Road, by Gerald J. Parent.

3. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor’s Office memorandum re: Retail Beer off Premises &
Small Farm Wine — Change of Manager from Kevin Stephens, for Wal-Mart
Supercenter #4460, by Naeomi L. York.

4. Utilities Accounting Department Financial Statements with Independent Auditors
Report Years ended December 31, 2014 and 2013 (Craft, Veach & Company, PLC).

PRESENTATIONS

SCHEDULED PUBLIC HEARING(S) 3 minutes
Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.

CITIZENS PUBLIC COMMENT ON NUMBERED LEGISLATION 3 minutes
Please sign in with the City Clerk before the meeting convenes at 6:00 p.m.
INCLUDES ALL PUBLIC HEARINGS
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UNFINISHED BUSINESS

0-15-38 Mayor Smith
Establishing the Northshore Lane Multi-Purpose Municipal Improvement District
No. 36. (Gene Pfeifer IIl, and Matt Chandler — Named Commissioners)

Held public hearing held 6/22/2015

CONSENT AGENDA
R-15-104 Mayor Smith
Confirming the reappointment of Marie-Bernarde Miller to the Board of

Commissioners of Central Arkansas Water

R-15-105 Mayor Smith
Authorizing the Mayor and City Clerk to enter into a Memorandum of Agreement
with Arkansas Department of Health for Renovations to Public Health Service
Facilities at 2800 Willow Street

R-15-106 Mayor Smith
Approving acceptance of a Grant awarded to the North Little Rock Fire
Department by FEMA under its staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency
Response (SAFER) Program

R-15-107 Mayor Smith
Declaring certain city-owned vehicles, outdated parts, and other equipment as
surplus; providing for auction thereof

R-15-108  Aldermen Ross and White
Accepting the donation of property located at 903 West 45" Street from the
Commissioner of State Lands
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NEW BUSINESS
RESOLUTIONS
R-15-109 Mayor Smith

Certifying the amount of a cleanup lien to be filed with the Pulaski County Tax
Collector against property located at 1805 Beech Street ($3,084.55)

convene a public hearing

R-15-110 Mayor Smith

Declaring certain buildings, houses and other structures located at 601 55
Terrace Drive to constitute a public nuisance and condemning said structures;

providing a period of time for property owner to abate said nuisance (owner:
Curtis Mclvor)

convene a public hearing

R-15-111 Mayor Smith

Declaring certain buildings, houses and other structures located at 2225 Fendley
Drive to constitute a public nuisance and condemning said structures; providing a

period of time for property owner to abate said nuisance (owner: Rafael
Guarionex DeCastro)

convene a public hearing

R-15-112 Mayor Smith

Declaring certain buildings, houses and other structures located at 2800 John
Ashley Drive to constitute a public nuisance and condemning said structures;

providing a period of time for property owner to abate said nuisance (owner:
Rafael Guarionex DeCastro)

convene a public hearing
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R-15-113  Mayor Smith

Declaring certain buildings, houses and other structures located at 522 West 22™
Street to constitute a public nuisance and condemning said structures; providing a

period of time for property owner to abate said nuisance (owner: Gloryland
Baptist Church)

convene a public hearing
R-15-114 Mayor Smith

Approving and certifying amounts of liens to be filed with the Pulaski County

Tax Collector against certain real properties as a result of grass cutting expenses
and abatement of other nuisances

convene a public hearing
ORDINANCES
0-15-59

Mayor Smith

Amending the Mid-Year 2015 Quota Ordinance (Ordinance No. 8750) for the
North Little Rock Fire Department

0-15-60  Mayor Smith for consideration only

Granting a Special Use to allow a Therapeutic Massage Clinic in a C-1 zone for
property located at 2525 Willow #1 (applicant: Craig Betts)

0O-15-61 Alderman Taylor

Amending Section 3.1 (Regulations Applying to All Districts) and Article 21
(Table of Permitted Uses of Ordinance No. 7697 (the Zoning Ordinance)
regarding Farming and the Keeping of Livestock)
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O-15-62  Aldermen Baxter and Foutch
To Reclassify property located at 6910 Dewaftflebakker Drive from I-2 to I-1 to
allow a Fitness Center, by amending Ordinance No. 7697

PUBLIC COMMENT ON NON-AGENDA ITEMS
All persons wishing to speak must have completed a public comment card and return it

to the City Clerk before this meeting is convened, speakers have 3 minutes to address
their topic

Respectfully submitted, <

Diane Whitbey, CAMC /M
City Clerk and Treasurer

Words to live by
The art of being wise is knowing what to overlook.
William James

For more information, visit our website at www.nlr.ar.gov.
To view council legislation, exhibits, etc., go the link above, then click on the
Government Tab, then select Council Agenda.







July 13, 2015

Six o-clock P.M.

North Little Rock City Hall Council Chambers
300 Main Street

North Little Rock, Arkansas

The regular meeting of the North Little Rock City Council scheduled for Monday, July 13,2015, was
called to order at 6:00 p.m. by the honorable Mayor Joe A. Smith.

The roll having been called and the following Aldermen answered to their names: DEBI ROSS, BETH
WHITE, MAURICE TAYLOR, LINDA ROBINSON, STEVE BAXTER, BRUCE FOUTCH,
CHARLIE HIGHT, and MURRY WITCHER (8/0). City Clerk Diane Whitbey and City Attorney C.
Jason Carter were also present.

The prayer and pledge of allegiance were led by Alderman Hight.

On the motion of Alderman Witcher and seconded by Alderman Hight, and by consent of all members
present, the minutes from the North Little Rock City Council meeting and Special Call meeting held
on Monday, June 22, 2015, were approved, accepted and filed as prepared by the City Clerk (8/0).

On the blanket motion of Alderman Baxter and seconded by Alderman Foutch, and by consent of all

members present communications #1, 3, and 5 were accepted and filed (8/0).

1. Karen Scott, Chairman Energy Risk Management Committee / Finance Director memorandum to
City Clerk Diane Whitbey re: ECR Adjustment Factor July, 2015, $.0009.

3. Mayor Smith letter to Mary Beth Bowman, Director of Commerce re: Architectural and
Engineering (A & E) Committee, reconfirming members and appointment of two new members,
Chris Wilbourn and Scott Springer.

5. Glinda Craigmyle, Mayor’s Office memorandum re: Retail Beer off Premises — Replacement from
Shiraz Sutar for North Hills P 66, 4601 North Hills Blvd, by Yu J. Lee.

On the motion of Alderwoman Ross and seconded by Alderman Baxter, and by consent of all members

present, communication #2 was read by title only, accepted and filed (8/0).

2. Robert Voyles, Planning Director letter to Mayor Smith re: Resignation/Retirement effective July
31, 2015.

On the motion of Alderman Witcher and seconded by Alderman Baxter, and by consent of all

members present, communication #4 was read by title only, accepted and filed (8/0).

4. Mayor Smith letter to City Council members re: appointment of Chief City Engineer, Chris
Wilbourn — annual salary $90,000.00.

North Little Rock City Council Meeting 7/13/2015
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On the motion of Alderman Witcher and seconded by Alderman Hight, and by consent of all members

present, communication #6 was read by title only, accepted and filed (8/0).

6. Mayor Smith letter to City Council members re: appointment of City Planning Director Shawn
Spencer effective August 1, 2015.

Mayor Smith said if there are qualified applicants within the city, his intent is to promote them.

No one signed in to speak under citizens public comment.

UNFINISHED BUSINESS

0-15-38

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE NORTHSHORE LANE MULTI-PURPOSE
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT NO. 36 OF THE CITY OF NORTH LITLE ROCK., ARKANSAS:
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY:; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was called and held by the
sponsor, Mayor Smith. (Note: a scheduled public hearing was held Monday, June 22, 2015).
(petitioned by Eugene Pfeifer, 11l and Matt Chandler)

CONSENT AGENDA

On the motion of Alderman Witcher and seconded by Alderman Taylor, and all members present
having voted “aye”, consent items R-15-99, R-15-100, and R-15-102, and R-15-103 were adopted
(8/0).

R-15-99 (RESOLUTION NO. 8825 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING $2.595.00 FROM ACT 833 FUNDS FOR CERTIFICATION
CLASS TUITION FOR THREE NORTH LITTLE ROCK FIREFIGHTERS: AND FOR OTHER
PURPOSES, was adopted (8/0).

R-15-100 (RESOLUTION NO. 8826 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING $18.437.00 FROM ACT 833 FUNDS FOR THE LOCAL
SHARE OF A FEMA GRANT AWARDED TO THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK FIRE DEPARTMENT
FOR PURCHASE OF WILDLAND WILDFIRE GEAR: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was
adopted (8/0).

R-15-102 (RESOLUTION NO. 8827 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY CLERK TO ENTER INTO A LEASE
AGREEMENT WITH GAIN. INC. FOR PROPERTY LOCATED AT 504 WEST 51°T STREET IN
THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was
adopted (8/0).
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NEW BUSINESS

R-15-98 (RESOLUTION NO. 8828 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION APPOINTING JEANNE HYDE TO THE POSITION PREVIOUSLY HELD BY
DR. DAVID BEVANS ON THE LAKEWOOD RECREATIONAL AREA IMPROVEMENT
DISTRICT NO. 4 BOARD OF ASSESSORS:; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. Mayor
Smith asked Mrs. Hyde who was present to stand and thanked her for her service. He also recognized
her husband, Pulaski County Judge Barry Hyde who was also present. On the motion of Alderwoman
Ross and seconded by Alderman Witcher, and by consent of all members present, the resolution was
unanimously adopted (8/0).

R-15-101 (RESOLUTION NO. 8829 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION APPROPRIATING $30.000.00 FOR THE COMPLETION OF RENOVATIONS
TO AND PURCHASE OF CAGES FOR THE ADOPTION AREA AT THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK
ANIMAL SHELTER: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. A motion to adopt was made by
Alderman Witcher and seconded by Alderman Taylor. Mayor Smith acknowledged volunteers from
North Little Rock Friends of Animals (NLRFOA) who were present to show their support for this
legislation. The volunteers raised $30,000.00 towards the shelter renovation project. Mr. Billy Grace,
North Little Rock Animal Control Director commended NLRFOA Treasurer Marsha Mosenthin for
her involvement in this effort. He also thanked the family of the late Dr. David Bevins who was
previous NLRFOA Treasurer. The family made a generous donation on his behalf. Mr. Grace also
thanked the city council for their support. On the previous motion, and by consent of all members
present, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0).

R-15-103 (RESOLUTION NO. 8830 - MAYOR SMITH)

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND CERTIFYING AMOUNTS OF LIENS TO BE FILED WITH
THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES IN THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK. ARKANSAS AS A RESULT OF GRASS CUTTING
EXPENSES AND ABATEMENT OF OTHER NUISANCES: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was
read. A motion to adopt was made by Alderman Taylor and seconded by Alderman Foutch. Mayor
Smith convened a public hearing. Mr. Jerry Lowkowski said the current owner (Keeton Properties,
LLC) purchased the property in January and asked if the fees could be forgiven. Mayor Smith said
these are not fines but fees for grass cutting expenses. Mr. Carter said if the fee is paid before the
resolution is filed with the county clerk, then the name can be removed by Code Enforcement. The
property is located at 16 Remount Road. There being no one else wishing to be heard, and on the
previous motion, the resolution was unanimously adopted (8/0).
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0-15-55 (ORDINANCE NO. 8750 — MAYOR SMITH)

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING JOB CLASSIFICATIONS AND NUMBERS OF EMPLOYEES
FOR EACH DEPARTMENT OF THE CITY GOVERNMENT OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK FOR
MID-YEAR 2015;: DECLARING AN EMERGENCY: AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. On
the motion of Alderman Foutch and seconded by Alderman Taylor, and by consent of all members
present, the readings were suspended (8/0). On the motion of Alderman Baxter and seconded by

Alderman Taylor, and by consent of all members present, the ordinance was amended as follows:: see
Section 13 Emergency Services Department as provided by City Attorney this date (8/0). On the
motion of Alderman Witcher and seconded by Alderman Hight, and the roll having been called, and all
members present having voted in the affirmative, the ordinance was unanimously adopted as amended
(8/0). Emergency clause unanimously adopted (8/0).

0-15-56 (ORDINANCE NO. 8751 - MAYOR SMITH)

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE TO ALLOW AN AMERICAN LEGION POST IN
A C-2 ZONE FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 325 WEST 29™ STREET IN THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS: DECLARING AN EMERGENCY:; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES, was read. On the motion of Alderwoman Ross and seconded by Alderman
Taylor, and by consent of all members present, the rules were suspended and the ordinance was placed
on its second reading (8/0). On the motion of Alderman Taylor and seconded by Alderwoman Ross,

and by consent of all members present, the rules were again suspended and the ordinance was placed
on its third and final reading (8/0). A motion to adopt was made by Alderman Hight and seconded by
Alderman Taylor. Mayor Smith said this was American Legion Post #1 which was the first one
created in the country. Alderwoman Ross asked if there was adequate parking. Mayor Smith said
occasional events will be held. On the previous motion, and the roll having been called, and all
members present, having voted in the affirmative, the ordinance was unanimously adopted (8/0).
(applicant: Bob Criswell)

0-15-57 for consideration only

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A CONDITIONAL USE TO ALLOW AUTOMOBILE SALES IN A
C-4 ZONE FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 920 EAST BROADWAY IN THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK. ARKANSAS: DECLARING AN EMERGENCY: AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES, was read. On the motion of Alderman Taylor and seconded by Alderman
Foutch, and by consent of all members present, the rules were suspended and the ordinance was placed
on its second reading (8/0). On the motion of Alderman Taylor and seconded by Alderman Baxter,
and by consent of all members present, the rules were again suspended and the ordinance was placed
on its third and final reading (8/0). A motion to adopt was made by Alderman Taylor and seconded by
Alderman Witcher. Alderman Taylor has been by the location and the existing facility is nice.
However, he suggested the applicant consider another location for car sales. On the previous motion,
and all members present having voted no, the ordinance failed (0/8). (applicant Sammy Alsofari)
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0-15-58 (ORDINANCE NO. 8752 — ALDERMEN WITCHER, WHITE AND HIGHT)

AN ORDINANCE ASSIGNING AND EXPANDING THE SPECIAL USE PREVIOUSLY
AUTHORIZIED FOR CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY IN AN R-4 ZONE LOCATED AT 6800 CAMP
ROBINSON ROAD IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK. ARKANSAS: DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY:; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES, was read. At the request of Alderman Witcher, and
without objection, Aldermen White and Hight were added as cosponsors. On the motion of Alderman
Witcher and seconded by Alderman Foutch, and by consent of all members present, the rules were
suspended and the ordinance was placed on its second reading (8/0). On the motion of Alderman
Hight and seconded by Alderman Witcher, and by consent of all members present, the rules were again
suspended and the ordinance was placed on its third and final reading (8/0). Alderman Witcher said
there has been a change in the management at this location, therefore the special use needed to be
expanded. Arkansas products will be added for sale. Mayor Smith said he toured some of the
Community Gardens in the city last week and they were amazing. On the motion of Alderman Hight
and seconded by Alderman Witcher, and the roll having been called and all members present, having
voted in the affirmative, the ordinance was unanimously adopted (8/0). Emergency clause
unanimously adopted (8/0). (applicant: St. Joseph Center of Arkansas, Inc.)

PUBLIC COMMENT
Mr. James Ard thanked the street department for clearing intersections along Camp Robinson Road so

people can see to pull out onto the street. Mr. Ard said the city should enforce laws regarding banners
and suggested adding $100.00 to their privilege license to include banners. Alderwoman Robinson
said her constituents have concerns with regard to power outages and restoration of the same. She
asked if the Electric Department had someone who could speak to neighborhood groups to explain
why one resident may have power and another may not. Mr. Carter said that can be done. Mayor
Smith said the storm a few weeks ago included straight-line winds and effected a large area of the city.
Six circuits were down at one time which effected over 10,000 customers. All six circuits were back
up within eight hours. The straight-line winds caused a lot of local damage in back yards for example
(trees down, transformers knocked down, service line down, etc.). The last few hundred customers fell
into that category. Alderwoman Ross suggested moving a code officer to planning to enforce zoning
issues, special use, etc. and also assist the City Clerk’s Office with business licenses. Alderman Taylor
said discussion regarding fees for banners has been discussed and that funds collected would cover an
employee for enforcement. Alderman Hight said he knows of one beer distributor who would like to
see banners banned. Alderwoman Robinson said they have a problem with dumping of tires and trash
on property in Ward 2. Alderwoman Ross suggested posting “no dumping” signs. Mayor Smith asked
Alderwoman Robinson to provide the address to Mr. Wilbourn. Alderman Taylor said the end of
Rogers Street is a favored dumping site and suggested signs or cameras.

There being no further business to come before the Council, and on the motion of Alderman Taylor
and seconded by Alderwoman White, and by consent of all members present, the meeting was
adjourned at 6:31 p.m. (8/0), until the next regularly scheduled meeting which will be held on Monday,
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July 27, 2015, at six o’clock p.m. in the City Council Chambers in City Hall, located at 300 Main
Street, North Little Rock, Arkansas.

APPROVED:

MAYOR JOE A. SMITH

ATTEST:

DIANE WHITBEY, CITY CLERK
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HARDIN & GRACE

A PROFESSIONAL ASSOCIATION
ATTORNEYS AT LAW
500 MAIN STREET, SUITE A
NORTH LITTLE RAQCK, AR 72114-5330
TELEPHONE: {(5a1) 378-7900
FACSIMILE: {(501) 376-6337

MAILING ADDRESS!

P.O. BOX 5851
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, AR 72119

G. RoOBERT HARDIN
EMAIL! BHARDIN@HANDINGHRACE.COM
PHONE EXTENSION: 11

June 4, 2015

Arkansas Democrat Gazette

ATTN: Legal Notices

Via E-mail: legalads@arkanasonline.com
Attention: Pam

RE: Notice of Hearing Regarding Amended Petition to Form Northshore Municipal Multi-Purpose
Improvement District

Dear Pam:

Enclosed herewith please find Notice of Hearing which we request be published in the Arkansas
Demaocrat Gazette once a week for two (2) weeks, with the first such publication as early as possible, but
not later than Sunday, June 7, 2015, and with the second publication on the 7th day thereafter, no later

than Sunday, June 14, 2015,

Please provide me with a certificate of publication and your invoice for publishing same. Please confirm
your receipt of this request. Thank you,

Sincerely,

HARDIN & GRA?, P.A.

TH A

G. Robert Hé(d o
GRH/msb

Enclosure

cc: Eugene M. Pfeifer, lll
Diane Whitbey





NOTICE OF HEARING

All owners of real property within the following described territory:

PART OF THE E1/2 OF SECTION 13, T-2-N, R-13-W, PULASKI COUNTY,
ARKANSAS, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE
NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE NWl/4 SE1/4, SAID SECTION 13; THENCE
S02°35'31"W ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID NW1l/4 SE1/4, 341.84 FT.;
THENCE N87°24'28"W, 430.00 FT.; THENCE N89°10'51"W, 243.24 FT.;
THENCE N68°10'27"W, 222.20 FT.; THENCE NO7°50'03"E, 340.97 FT.;
THENCE WESTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF A 1040.00 FT. RADIUS CURVE TO THE
RIGHT, A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE OF N75°10'l12"w, 253.34 FT.;
THENCE N68°10'27"W, 232.29 FT. TO A POINT ON THE WEST LINE OF THE
SW1/4 NE1/4 OF SATID SECTION 13; THENCE N01°59'19"E ALONG SATD WEST
LINE, 510.03 FT.; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE FOLLOWING BEARINGS AND

DISTANCES: N44°29'20"E, 202.36 FT.; N60°20'20"E, 83.77 FT.;
N67°23'19"E, 150.08 FT.; S88°36'36"E, 103.00 FT.; S80°56'42"E,
64.56 FT.; S73°27'45"E, 77.92 FT.; S42°44'45"E, 79.99 FT.;

S56°07'30"E, 117.63 FT.; S41°48'41"E, 101.78 FT.; S52°33'04"E,
108.81 FT.;S56°15'29"E, 65.96 FT.; S34°20'47"E, 80.72 FT.;
S24°53'46"E, 66.10 FT.; S31°30'21"E, 28.94 FT.; S53°58'30"E, 56.75
FT.; S57°19'47"E, 90.33 FT.; S59°23'25"E, 80.24 FT. AND
$51°48'25"E, 74.73 FT. TO A POINT ON THE EAST LINE OF SAID SW1/4
NE1/4; THENCE S00°29'15"W ALONG SAID EAST LINE, 348.11 FT. TO THE
POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTIANING 28.128 ACRES MORE OR LESS.

AND

PART OF THE N1/2 OF SECTION 13, T-2-N, R-13-W, PULASKI COUNTY,
ARKANSAS, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE
SOUTHEAST CORNER OF THE NE1/4 NW1l/4, SAID SECTION 13; THENCE
S01°46'04"W ALONG THE EAST LINE OF THE SE1/4 NW1l/4, SAID SECTION
13, 491.94 FT.; THENCE  §71°10'47"W, 472.73  FT.; THENCE
N49°59'33"W, 522.57 FT.; THENCE N83°58'30"W, 477.39 FT.; THENCE
N84°54'56"W, 235.27 FT. TO A POINT ON THE SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY
LINE OF STATE HIGHWAY NO. 100; THENCE NORTHEASTERLY ALONG SAID
SOUTHERLY RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE THE FOLLOWING: (1) N52°00'52"E, 129.11
FT.; (2) N50°28'54"E, 158.65 FT.; (3) N45°54'28"E, 405.22 FT.; (4)
N52°13'15"E, 593.11 FT. AND (5) N39°49'19"E, 90.59 FT. TO A POINT
ON THE CENTER OF WHITE OAK BAYOU; THENCE EASTERLY ALONG THE CENTER
OF WHITE OAK BAYOU THE FOLLOWING: (1) EASTERLY ALONG THE ARC OF A
100.00 FT. RADIUS CURVE TO THE LEFT, A CHORD BEARING AND DISTANCE
OF S874°24'45"E, 150.52 FT.; (2) N56°46'10"E, 154.17 FT.; (3)
$88°33'33"E, 284.19 FT.; (4) S52°43'06"E, 149.04 FT. ; (5)

{ )

S38°36'13"E, 228.84 FT.; (6) S74°02'25"E, 92.79 FT. (7
887°31'32"E, 139.80 FT.; (8) S66°04'52"E, 123.62 FT.; (9)
N86°58'00"E, 209.95 FT.; (10) S72°54'33"E, 147.43 FT.; (11)
S33°08'28"E, 274.42 FT.; (12) S23°17'25"E, 66.89 FT. AND (13)

S11°12'06"W, 68.52 FT. TO A POINT ON THE SOUTH LINE OF THE NW1/4
NE1/4, SAID SECTION 13; THENCE N87°40'21"W ALONG SAID SOUTH LINE,
1145.97 FT. TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 38.893 ACRES
MORE OR LESS.

AND

PART OF THE SE1/4 NW 1/4, SECTION 13, T-2-N, R-13-W, PULASKI COUNTY,
ARKANSAS, MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS FOLLOWS:
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BEGINNING AT A POINT 456 FEET SOUTH OF THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF
THE SE1/4 NW 1/4 SAID SECTION 13, THENCE S00°40'15'W, 600 FEET
MORE OR LESS TO A POINT ON THE NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE OF YOUNG
ROAD: THENCE N77°41'W ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 177.8
FEET; THENCE N69°12'W ALONG SAID NORTH RIGHT-OF-WAY LINE 157.95
FEET; THENCE N20°02'E, 185.00 FEET; THENCE N38°13"36"E, 380.23
FEET; THENCE N55°00'E, 25.0 FEET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING,
CONTAINING 2.56 ACRES MORE OR LESS. SUBJECT TO A 30 FEET INGRESS-
EGRESS EASEMENT OVER THE WESTERLY SIDE OF ABOVE DESCRIBED
PROPERTY.

AND

A TRACT OF LAND IN THE SW1/4 NE 1/4, SECTION 13, T-2-N, R-13-W.
PULASKI COUNTY, ARKANSAS, BEING MORE PARTICULARLY DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS: BEGINNING AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF THE SWl/4 NE1/4
SECTION 13, T-2-N, R-13-W; THENCE S01°46'W, 950.22 FEET; THENCE
N52°12'W, 74.72 FEET; THENCE N59°48'wW, 80.25 FEET, THENCE
N57°44'W, 90.32 FEET; THENCE N54°23'W 56.75 FEET; THENCE
N31°55'W, 28.95 FEET; THENCE N25°18' W, 66.10 FEET; THENCE
N34°45'W, 80.71 FEET; THENCE ©N56°40'W, 65.97 FEET; THENCE
52°57'W,108.81 FEET; THENCE N42°13'W,101.78 FEET; THENCE
N56°32'W, 117.63 FEET; THENCE N43°09"W, 79.99 FEET; THENCE
N73°52'W, 77.92 FEET; THENCE N81°21'W, 64.56 FEET; THENCE
N89°01'W,103.00 FEET; THENCE S66°59'W, 150.07 FEET, THENCE
S59°56°W. 83.78 FEET; THENCE S44°05"wW, 202.05 FEET; THENCE
N01°35'E, 588.79 FEET; THENCE S88°02'E, 1310.29 FEET TO THE POINT
OF BEGINNING, CONTAINING 16.29 ACRES MORE OR LESS,

in the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, are hereby notified that an amended petition
has been filed with the City Clerk of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas purporting
to be signed by a majority in value of the owners of real property within the territory,
which petition prays that a local improvement district (the “Proposed District”) be
formed embracing territory for the purposes of constructing the Proposed
Improvements (as herein described), including, but not limited to, purchasing,
accepting as a gift, constructing, opening, grading, or otherwise improving the
designated streets, either within the boundaries of the Proposed District, or beyond the
boundaries and beyond the limits of the city of North Little Rock if the property in the
Proposed District will be benefitted thereby, including the acquisition of rights-of-way
by purchase or the exercise of the power of eminent domain as provided in A.C.A. § 14-
91-104 and the payment of damages for the taking or injuring of property resulting
from the making of any such Proposed Improvements, as provided by law, or to pay for
any local improvement of a public nature theretofore made, by which the property
within the Proposed District has benefitted; for the purpose of paying the principal of
and interest on any bonds at any time authorized and issued by any such Proposed
District pursuant to and in the manner and for the purposes specified herein; all for the
purpose of the construction of the roadway for Northshore Lane from and connecting
Crystal Hill Road to the southern most boundary of the Proposed District to connect to
the existing portion of Northshore Lane as shown on the alternative drawings affixed to
the amended petition (the "Proposed Improvements"), said Proposed Improvements
constituting either approximately 3,200 linear feet or approximately 3,700 linear feet of
newly constructed roadway, as the case may be, and traffic signal, and that the cost
thereof be assessed and charged upon the real property above described. All owners of
real property within the territory are advised that said amended petition will be heard at
the meeting of the City Council to be held at the hour of 6:00 o’clock, p. m. on the 22"d
day of June, 2015, and that at the meeting the North Little Rock City Council will
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determine whether those signing the amended petition constitute a majority in value of
such owners of real property; and at the meeting all owners of real property within said
territory who desire will be heard upon the question.

\\ Diane Whitbey
Diane Whitbey, North Little Rock City Clerk
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING THE NORTHSHORE LANE
MULTI-PURPOSE MUNICIPAL IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT
NO. 36 OF THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS;
DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, a petition, purporting to be signed by the owners of more than a
majority in assessed value of the real property described therein, was filed with the City
Clerk of North Little Rock, Arkansas and was scheduled for public hearing on April 13,
2015 but delayed until requested by a petitioner; and

WHEREAS, on May 12, 2015, an amended petition was filed with the City
Clerk of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, purporting to be signed by the owners
of more than a majority in value of assessed value of the real property described within
the petition ("Property"), praying that a municipal improvement district be established
for the purposes set forth herein, said amended petition being attached hereto as
"Exhibit A"; and

WHEREAS, after due notice by the petitioner as required by law, the City
Council of City of North Little Rock, Arkansas (the "City Council") has heard all
parties desired to be heard.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That owners of more than a majority in value of assessed value of
the real property described in the Petition signed the Petition, and there is hereby
established a municipal improvement district (the "District") within the Property, for the
purposes of constructing the Proposed Improvements (as hereinafter described)
including, but not limited to, purchasing, accepting as a gift, constructing, opening,
grading, or otherwise improving streets, either within the boundaries of the District, or
beyond the boundaries and beyond the limits of the city of North Little Rock if the
property in the District will be benefitted thereby, including the acquisition of rights-of-
way by purchase or the exercise of the power of eminent domain as provided in A.C.A.
§ 14-91-104 and the payment of damages for the taking or injuring of property resulting
from the making of any such improvement, as provided by law, or to pay for any local
improvement of a public nature theretofore made, by which the property within the
District has benefitted; for the purpose of paying the principal of and interest on any
bonds at any time authorized and issued by any such District pursuant to and in the
manner and for the purposes specified herein; for the purpose of constructing the
roadway as shown on the drawing affixed to and described in the petition; and doing all
things now or hereafter permitted under applicable law to be done and performed by
Municipal Improvement Districts in conjuction with the construction of said roadway,
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either within or without the boundaries of the District if the property of the District will
be benefitted thereby.

SECTION 2: The district shall be known as Northshore Lane Multi-Purpose
Municipal Improvement District No. 36 of North Little Rock, Arkansas. Eugene M.
Pfeifer, III, Matt Chandler, whose names appear in the petition, and other such
individuals as selected by the North Little Rock City Council, each of whom owns
property within the proposed District or is an officer, director, stockholder, trustee,
employee or other designated representative of a corporation, partnership, trust or other
legal entity which owns real property within the proposed District, are named
Commissioners who shall constitute the Board of the District.

SECTION 3: Any ordinances or parts of ordinances that are in conflict herewith
are hereby repealed to the extent they conflict with this ordinance.

SECTION 4: That the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be
severable, and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 5: It has been found, and it is hereby declared, by the City Council
that the improvements to Northshore Lane present an imminent threat to sales tax
revenues, property tax revenues, and the fair and reasonable use of area property such
that the provisions of this Ordinance are immediately necessary for infrastructure
needed within the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas; THEREFORE, an emergency is
hereby declared to exist, and this Ordinance being necessary for the preservation of the
public peace, health and safety, shall be in full force and effect upon its passage and
approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:
L /,?
. Smith AL Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

FIL » A M PM
5) B, Coct

C. Jason Carter, City Attorney O Lo

DATE f G-15

PREPARED BY HARDEN & GRACE, P.A./GRH
AND FORMATTED BY OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North thﬂeﬁochms
RECEIVED BL 7 “9‘6
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AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE MID-YEAR 2015 QUOTA
ORDINANCE (ORDINANCE NO. 8750) FOR THE NORTH
LITTLE ROCK FIRE DEPARTMENT; DECLARING AN
EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

ORDINANCE NO.

WHEREAS, the City Council is responsible for establishing the number of
employees in each department; and

WHEREAS, the North Little Rock Fire Department has received a grant from the
Federal Emergency Management Agency (“FEMA”) of the Department of Homeland
Security (Grant No. DMW-2014-FH-00131) to fund twenty-four (24) Firefighter
positions for two (2) years (three [3] years for any veteran hired).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Section 15 of Ordinance No. 8750, adopted July 13, 2015, is
hereby amended as follows:

SECTION 15: That the Fire Department shall consist of one hundred
seventy five (175) full-time employees (172 uniformed and 3 non-uniformed) as
follows: (Per Ordinance 7615, 1/26/04, is authorized to exceed by 3 the quota of
firefighters due to absences caused by military leaves.)

Uniformed:
Chief, NEG - 1
Assistant Chief, Y04 — 1
Battalion Chief, Y04 - 3
Captain, Y03 — 42
Fire Marshall, Y04 - 1
Firefighter, Y01 — 57 81 Add 24 positions - grant-funded 2-3
years depending on status of grant
Lieutenant, Y02 —43

Non-uniformed:
Administrative Secretary, FO6A — 1
Office Assistant, Senior, FOSA — 1
Vehicle General Foreman, F10 — 1

SECTION 2: All ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby
repealed to the extent of the conflict.

SECTION 3: That the provisions of this ordinance are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
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invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 4: That the City Council has determined that the interests of the City
and City employees can best be served by the adoption of this ordinance; THEREFORE,
an emergency is hereby declared to exist, and this Ordinance shall be in full force and
effect from and after its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

ROV ﬁﬂ/‘/

Mayp{ Joe A. Smith Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

C. Jason Carter, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE NLR HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT
FORMATTED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY

FILED [ D! : PM.
B)Kijh Rfi’\,a, QDL\, b
DATE MSL l 15

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE GRANTING A SPECIAL USE TO ALLOW A
THERAPEUTIC MASSAGE CLINIC IN A C-1 ZONE FOR
CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 2525 WILLOW #1
IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS;

DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND FOR OTHER
PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, application was duly made by Mr. Craig Betts, P. O. Box 17253,
Little Rock, AR 72222, seeking a special use of said land, which application was duly
considered and approved (7 affirmative votes; 2 absent) by the North Little Rock
Planning Commission at a regularly scheduled meeting thereof held on July 14, 2015.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That a special use is hereby granted to allow a therapeutic massage
clinic in a C-1 zone for the subject real property located at 2525 Willow Street — #1 in
the City of North Little Rock, being more particularly described as:

Lot 15, Block 23, Military Heights Addition to the City of North Little
Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas. (See Exhibits “A” and “B” attached
hereto.)

SECTION 2: That this special use shall be subject to the conditions listed

below:

2)

b)
c)

d)

Applicant must meet all applicable Federal, State, County and City
requirements.

Hours of operation will be 8:00 a.m. — 6:00 p.m., Monday thru Saturday.
Business license to be issued after Planning Staff confirmation that
requirements have been met.

Applicant/owner understands that failure to comply with these
conditions may result in loss of the Special Use and/or removal of
Electric Power Meter.

SECTION 3: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are
hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.

SECTION 4: That the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.
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SECTION 5: It is hereby found and determined that the special use of the
above-described lands to allow a therapeutic massage clinic, as provided for herein, will
not be detrimental to or interfere with other occupants in the area, is compatible with
other nearby businesses, and is immediately necessary in order to insure the proper and
orderly growth of this land and the proper and orderly growth of the City of North Little
Rock, Arkansas, and being necessary for the immediate preservation of the public
health, safety and welfare, THEREFORE, an emergency is hereby declared to exist and
this Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR ATTEST:
FOR CO SIDERATION ONLY:

vy, D o,

May(}t/.loe. A~ Smith Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APP D AS

’ AN
C. Jason Ca;te/r, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

riLep [D)Sh am. PM.
‘dia Kﬁk N
DATE 7 2/1—15

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVFDBX j/) W\M
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING SECTION 3.1 (REGULATIONS
APPLYING TO ALL DISTRICTS) AND ARTICLE 21 (TABLE
OF PERMITTED USES) OF ORDINANCE NO. 7697 (THE
ZONING ORDINANCE) REGARDING FARMING AND THE
KEEPING OF LIVESTOCK; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY;
AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock duly adopted Ordinance No. 7697 to
regulate zoning in accordance with Ark. Code Ann. § 14-56-416 and has amended the same
from time to time (hereafter “the Zoning Ordinance™); and

WHEREAS, there is a need to more clearly state the regulations regarding small
farming or ranch plots and the zoning categories in which they are permitted; and

WHEREAS, amendments to regulations and zoning categories for farming and the
keeping of livestock were duly considered and approved (7 affirmative votes; 2 absent) by
the North Little Rock Planning Commission at a regularly scheduled meeting thereof held
on July 14, 2015.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Section 3.1 (Regulations Applying to All Districts) of the North
Little Rock Zoning Ordinance is hereby amended as follows:

Section 3.1 — Regulations Applying to All Districts

kkk

F. Farming is permitted in all districts; however, the authority to farm shall not be
a valid defense to a violation of any ordinance regulating animals, nuisances,
businesses, property maintenance, the environment, or otherwise enacted to
protect the public health, safety, and welfare. No person shall keep any horse,
cow or other livestock except in an enclosed pasture containing one acre for
each animal. The fencing for the enclosed pasture shall be a minimum of 300’
from any residence.

SECTION 2: That Article 21 (Table of Permitted Uses) of the North Little Rock
Zoning Ordinance is amended to delete the following use categories:

e GtoralinG ol and Industrial distri
lowod brrieht in . | Groonbel and

Fame-Landa—tros-snd-Fanching
” by richt in Industrial and-C o dlistss
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Editor’s Note: Added text denoted by underline; deleted text by strikethreugh.

SECTION 4: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are
hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.

SECTION 5: That the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be
severable, and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 6: It is hereby found and determined that the herein amendments to the
North Little Rock Zoning Ordinance regarding farming and the keeping of livestock is
necessary in order to maintain consistency, and the passage of this Ordinance is necessary
to insure the proper and orderly growth of this land and of the City of North Little Rock,
Arkansas, and being necessary for the immediate preservation of the public health, safety
and welfare; THEREFORE, an emergency is hereby declared to exist, and this Ordinance
shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSOR: ATTEST:
Alderman Maurice Taylor Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C. Jason Carter, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

rILED /D160 aM. P.M.

- S 3 =
By (1wkjh {}‘:\M\ ( B T
DATE 1-21-15

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED Bv__‘y":} V\/\S\AL ne- |
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ORDINANCE NO.

AN ORDINANCE TO RECLASSIFY CERTAIN PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 6910 DEWAFFLEBAKKER DRIVE IN THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS, FROM 1-2 TO
I-1 TO ALLOW A FITNESS CENTER, BY AMENDING
ORDINANCE NO. 7697; DECLARING AN EMERGENCY; AND
FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, application was duly made by Mr. Eric Holloway, 200 Casey Drive,
Maumelle, AR 72113, seeking a rezone of the herein described land to allow a fitness
center, which application was duly considered and approved (9 affirmative votes) by the
North Little Rock Planning Commission at a regularly scheduled meeting thereof held on
June 9, 2015.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That Ordinance No. 7697 of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas
(“the Zoning Ordinance”) is hereby amended by changing the classification of certain land
from I-2 to I-1 to a fitness center, said property being located at 6910 Dewafflebakker Drive
in North Little Rock, Arkansas, and more particularly described as:

Lot 1, Rock City Crossfit Addition to the City of North Little Rock, Pulaski
County, Arkansas. (See Exhibits “A” and “B” attached hereto.)

SECTION 2: That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are
hereby repealed to the extent of the conflict.

SECTION 3: That the provisions of this Ordinance are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 4: 1t is hereby found and determined that the City benefits from
commercial development within its boundaries, that the rezoning of the above-described
land as provided for herein to allow a fitness center will not be detrimental to or interfere
with other occupants in the area and is immediately necessary in order to insure the proper
and orderly growth of this land and of the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas, and being
necessary for the immediate preservation of the public health, safety and welfare;
THEREFORE, an emergency is hereby declared to exist and this Ordinance shall be in full
force and effect from and after its passage and approval

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

1of2





SPONSORS: ATTEST:

Alderman Steve Baxter Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

Alderman Bruce Foutch

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C. Jason Carter, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FiLep [0 56 am. PM.
By (u.k%\ km L v\.jtc
DATE ’7 Ll ~) g

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

¥

RECEIVED BY 2 ) lJH\OwLmQL‘C;
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE REAPPOINTMENT OF
MARIE-BERNARDE MILLER TO THE BOARD OF
COMMISSIONERS OF CENTRAL ARKANSAS WATER; AND
FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the term of Ms. Marie-Bernarde Miller on the Central Arkansas Water
Board of Commissioners expired on June 30, 2015; and

WHEREAS, at a regular meeting held on June 11, 2015, the CAW Board of
Commissioners reappointed Ms. Marie-Bernarde Miller to a seven-year term on the CAW
Board (CAW Resolution 2015-05 attached hereto as Exhibit “A”); and

WHEREAS, Ms. Miller wishes to serve on the Central Arkansas Water Commission,
is well qualified for the position, and has previously completed a Personal Information Sheet.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the reappointment of Ms. Marie-Bernarde Miller to serve on the
Board of Commissioners of Central Arkansas Water is hereby confirmed, said term to expire

June 30, 2022.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONS?). ATTEST:
V%
Mayﬁ Joe A. Smith *5%/_ Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

APPROYED ASYTO F ;
m <> /M( ZZ," FILED [[L S & AM. PM.
: e By @_4_12. Oﬁ—'\q : O_CL:QL\J

C. Jason C?ﬁer, City-Atforney ] é :

DATE T-21-1)5
PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BM . )/l/






RESOLUTION 2015-05

A RESOLUTION RE-APPOINTING MS. MARIE-BERNARDE MILLER TO THE
BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS, CENTRAL ARKANSAS WATER, AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES

WHEREAS, the term of Ms. Marie-Bernarde Miller, a member of the Board of
Commissioners, Central Arkansas Water (‘CAW Board”), expires on June 30, 2015; and

WHEREAS, by law it is the duty of the remaining commissioners to nominate and
appoint a commissioner when a vacancy occurs on the CAW Board, subject to confirmation by
the Board of Directors of the City of Little Rock, Arkansas, and the City Council of the City of
North Little Rock, Arkansas.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS,
CENTRAL ARKANSAS WATER, THAT the remaining commissioners do hereby reappoint Ms.
Miller to a seven-year term, subject to confirmation by the duly elected and qualified members of
the Board of Directors of the City of Little Rock and the City Council of the City of North Little
Rock, and that her term of office shall be through June 30, 2022.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Board of Directors of the City of Little Rock and
the City Council of the City of North Little Rock be requested to confirm this appointment.

*kkkkkk

CERTIFICATE

I, Anthony Kendall, Secretary of the Board of Commissioners, Central Arkansas Water, certify
that, as such Secretary, | have custody of the Minutes and documents of Central Arkansas
Water, and that the above and foregoing is a correct copy of a resolution adopted by said
Board of Commissioners at a meeting held June 11, 2015.

N

Anthony Kendall, Secretary

EXHIBIT

“A”
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A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR AND CITY
CLERK TO ENTER INTO A MEMORANDUM OF
AGREEMENT WITH ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
FOR RENOVATIONS TO PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICE
FACILITIES AT 2800 WILLOW STREET; AND FOR OTHER
PURPOSES.

RESOLUTION NO.

WHEREAS, the City of North Little Rock (“the City”) owns property located at
2800 Willow Street and leases part of the building/property to Pulaski County in order

to offer all public health services mandated and required by the Arkansas Department of
Health (“ADH”); and

WHEREAS, ADH wishes to make certain renovations to portions of the
building at 2800 Willow Street for the purposes of expanding the health clinic area and
increasing ease of access for deliveries and other similar uses; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the citizens and residents of the City that
ADH make renovations at the subject property; and

WHEREAS, the City and ADH desire to enter into an agreement whereby ADH
will provide funds for the desired renovations, and the City will procure all services to
complete the renovations at the site.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to enter into
a Memorandum of Agreement (substantially similar to Exhibit “A” attached hereto)
with Arkansas Department of Health for renovations to public health service facilities in
city-owned property located at 2800 Willow Street for an estimated total cost of
$119,381.00.

SECTION 2: That procurement for professional services will be made pursuant
to Ark. Code Ann. § 19-11-801, et seq. and acquisition of services for construction and
similar work will be pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 22-9-203. Funds for the renovation
project will be paid by ADH upon submittal of invoices by the City.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith
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ATTEST:

<°7 L5,

Mayor oe A. Smith Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

@W

_Jason-Carter, Chy/ Xttomey

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FILED 56 a
Qxh (ﬁﬂa Q,ovdruo
DATE 7 1211*19

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

L]

RECEIVED @ \ ﬂ/\ic.v.ﬂmng
o >
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EXHIBIT

MEMORANDUM OF AGREEMENT ‘ ’q g
Between the

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS
and
ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH

This agreement is made and entered into this day of , 2015, by and
between the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas (“the City”) and the Arkansas Department of
Health-WIC Program (“ADH?™), pursuant to the authority of Ark. Code Ann. §§ 25-20-101 ef seq.,
and will become binding on all parties upon ratification by the North Little Rock City Council and
ADH.

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the City owns the building/property at 2800 Willow Street in North Little Rock,
Arkansas, and leases part of the building/property to Pulaski County in order to offer all public health
services mandated and required by ADH; and

WHEREAS, ADH desires to make certain renovations to portions of the building at 2800
Willow Street for the purposes of expanding the clinic area of the building and increasing ease of
access for delivery of services, and other similar uses; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of its citizens and residents of the City that ADH makes
renovations to the building at 2800 Willow Street; and

WHEREAS, the City and the ADH desire to enter into a contractual agreement whereby
ADH shall provide all costs for its desired renovations to, and the City shall procure all services for
ADH’s renovations at 2800 Willow Street.

NOW, THEREFORE, IT IS HEREBY AGREED BY THE PARTIES HERETO THAT:

1. ADH will issue a purchase order in the amount of One Hundred Nineteen Thousand Three
Hundred Eighty & 00/100 Dollars ($119,380.00) to the City of North Little Rock for renovations at
2800 Willow Street.

2. The City will acquire the services of an architect to develop construction plans and
specifications. Upon receipt, the City will provide the plans and specifications to ADH, attention to
James Joiner, Facility Engineer, 4815 West Markham Street, Slot 34, Little Rock, AR 72205, for
approval. After approval by ADH, the City will submit the renovation project. Procurement for
professional services will be made pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 19-11-801, et seq. with acquisition
of other services for repairs, alterations, construction and other similar work pursuant to Ark. Code
Ann. § 22-9-203.

3. The City will disburse payment to all entities, including, but not limited to, architects and
contractors for all services performed according to the following cost estimate:

Demolition: $ 8,303.00
Renovations: 77,490.00
General Contractor Fees: 12,869.00

Contingency: 9.866.00





Construction Cost: $ 108,527.00
A/E Fees: 10,853.00
Total Project Cost Estimate:  $ 119,380.00

4. The City shall request and receive authorized funds from ADH by submitting forms and
documentation for allowable expenses incurred by the City while undertaking the Agreement. To
request payment of expense, the City shall submit an itemized invoice of incurred expenses to ADH.
ADH acknowledges and agrees that the lowest bid for the project may exceed the agreed upon
estimate. ADH agrees to reimburse the City in the same manner as reimbursing the City for
allowable expenses for all costs incurred with bids exceeding the agreed upon estimate in the event
the lowest bid exceeds the estimated cost. It is understood by the parties hereto that total project
costs will not exceed the grant funds awarded in the amount of $119,380.00.

5. ADH agrees that funds for the project shall be obligated by September 30, 2105. The parties
agree that the project will be completed, or substantially completed pending reasonable delay, by
November 30, 2015. The City shall submit any and all invoices for payment by ADH by December
15, 2015, addressed to Arkansas Department of Health-WIC Program, ATTN Rhonda Williams,
5800 West 10th Street, Suite 810, Little Rock, AR 72204.

6. The City agrees to provide ADH periodic reports pertaining to the activities undertaken
pursuant to this Agreement.

7. This instrument constitutes the entire agreement between the parties, and there are no
agreements, understanding, warranties, or representations except as set forth herein.

8. This agreement has been signed and delivered in, and the rights of the parties hereunder shall
be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Arkansas.

9. This document may be executed in counterparts.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have hereunto set their hands and seals on the
date first above written.

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, AR ARKANSAS DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH
By By
Joe A. Smith, Mayor Robert Brech
Chief Financial Officer
ATTEST:

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk
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A RESOLUTION APPROVING ACCEPTANCE OF A GRANT
AWARDED TO THE NORTH LITTLE ROCK FIRE
DEPARTMENT BY FEMA UNDER ITS STAFFING FOR
ADEQUATE FIRE AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE (SAFER)
PROGRAM; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

RESOLUTION NO.

WHEREAS, the Federal Emergency Management Agency (“FEMA”) of the
Department of Homeland Security (“DHS”) has established the FY2014 Staffing for
Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (“SAFER”) grant program to provide
funding directly to fire departments in order to achieve ample staffing for the provision
of adequate protection from fire and fire related hazards and to fulfill traditional
missions of their departments (Grant Program information attached hereto as Exhibit
“A”); and

WHEREAS, the North Little Rock Fire Department submitted an application to
FEMA under the SAFER Grant Program, and the application has been approved in the
amount of $2,632,824.00 with no matching local funds required.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That acceptance of Grant No. DMW-2014-FH-00131, in the
amount of $2,632,824.00, from the Federal Emergency Management Agency of the
Department of Homeland Security (Award Package attached hereto as Exhibit “B” and
incorporated herein by reference) is hereby approved.

SECTION 2: That the SAFER grant for $2,632,824.00 is awarded without a
requirement for matching local funds.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect form and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

Mayo;/] oe A. Smith— /C Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

1of2





APPROVED FOR

/z%/
ey

C. Janﬁclarte;,/City Xttor

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

F[LE_P 056 am. P.M.
By : LN " :
DATE N 21-15

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED B{d W \m&,«%

g _)
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FY 2014 Staffing for
Adequate Fire and

Emergency Response
(SAFER)

Frequently Asked Questions
(FAQs)

What is the purpose of SAFER?

The purpose of SAFER Grants is to provide funding directly to fire departments and national, state, local, or tribal
organizations representing the interests of volunteer firefighters to assist them in increasing the number of firefighters to help
communities meet industry minimum standards and attain 24-hour staffing to provide adequate protection from fire and fire
related hazards, and to fulfill traditional missions of fire departments.

SAFER Grants achieve this purpose by funding: (1) the hiring of new firefighters, (2) the rehiring of firefighters that have been
laid off, (3) the retention of firefighters facing imminent layoffs, or (4) the filling of positions that were vacated through attrition.
Additionally, SAFER Grants fund fire departments and national, state, local, or tribal organizations representing the interests of
volunteer firefighters to assist with the recruitment and retention of volunteer firefighters.

Are there any funding limits for SAFER?

There are no annual salary limits, and there are no cost-sharing requirements for funds under the FY 2014 appropriations.
Which categories of activities are eligible for funding under SAFER?

SAFER is a competitive/discretionary grant program comprised of two categories:

1. Hiring of Firefighters Grants provide financial assistance to help fire departments rehire firefighters that have been laid
off, retain firefighters facing imminent layoffs, fill positions that were vacated through attrition, or hire new firefighters. The
goal is to assist departments to improve or restore staffing levels to ensure they have adequate personnel to respond
and safely perform at incident scenes, providing protection from fire and fire-related hazards for their communities. This
category provides two-year grants to assist fire departments hy paying the salaries and benefits of the SAFER-

funded positions.

2. Recruitment and Retention of Volunteer Firefighters Grants are to assist fire departments and national, state, local, or
tribal organizations with the recruitment and/or retention of volunteer firefighters that are involved with, or trained in, the
operations of firefighting and emergency response. The goal is to create a net increase in the number of trained, certified,
and competent firefighters capable of safely responding to emergencies likely to occur within the fire department’s
geographic response area. Recruitment and Retention category grants can have a period of performance of up to

EXHIBIT

four years.
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Miscellaneous

Are there targeted funding amounts for the two SAFER Activities?

A total of $340,000,000 has been appropriated for the FY 2014 SAFER Grants.
The appropriated funds are to be administered as indicated below. Specific funding parameters are highlighted as the result
of a recommendation via the criteria development process (CD) or as required by Federal Fire Prevention and Control Act of

1974, as amended:

+ 10 percent is set aside for the recruitment and retention of volunteer firefighters (15 USC § 2229a(a)(2))

- No more than 33 percent of the total amount allocated for the recruitment and retention of volunteers can be awarded
to national, state, local, or tribal organizations that represent the interests of volunteer firefighters (CD)

+ 10 percent is set aside for grants awarded to volunteer or majority volunteer departments for hiring of firefighters.
A majority volunteer fire department is made up of more than 50 percent of personnel who do not receive financial
compensation for their services, other than life, health, and worker's compensation insurance, or a nominal stipend
payment, including certain paid-on-call personnel. It may be necessary to go out of rank order to select a sufficient
number of applications in order to meet the 10 percent requirement. (15 USC § 2229a(a)(1)(H))

If less than 10 percent of the funds available for the hiring of firefighters are awarded to volunteer and majority volunteer
fire departments, the remaining funds must be transferred to provide grants for the recruitment and retention of volunteer

firefighters (15 USC § 2229a(a)(1)(H))
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U S Department of Homeland Security
Washington, D.C 20472

FEMA

Mr.Robert Barton

North Little Rock Fire Department

120 Main Street

North Little Rock, Arkansas 72114-5631

Re: Grant No.EMW-2014-FH-00131

Dear Mr. Barton:;

Congratulations, on behalf of the Department of Homeland Security, your application for financial assistance
submitted under the Fiscal Year (FY) 2014 Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) Grant
has been approved in the amount of $2,632,824.00. As a condition of this award, you are required to contribute
a cost match in the amount of $0.00 of non-Federal funds, or 0 percent of the Federal contribution of

$2,632,824.00.

Before you request and receive any of the Federal funds awarded to you, you must establish acceptance
of the award through the Assistance to Firefighters Grant Programs’ e-grant system. By accepting this
award, you acknowledge that the terms of the following documents are incorporated into the terms of your
award:

o Summary Award Memo

¢ Agreement Articles (attached to this Award Letter)

o Obligating Document (attached to this Award Letter)

e FY 2014 Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) Grant Funding Opportunity

Announcement.

Please make sure you read, understand, and maintain a copy of these documents in your official file for this
award.

Prior to requesting Federal funds, all recipients are required to register in the System for Award
Management (SAM.gov). As the recipient, you must register and maintain current information in SAM.gov until
you submit the final financial report required under this award or receive the final payment, whichever is later.
This requires that the recipient review and update the information annually after the initial registration, and more
frequently for changes in your information. There is no charge to register in SAM.gov. Your registration must be
completed on-line at https://www.sam.gov/portal/public/SAM/. It is your entity’s responsibility to have a valid
DUNS number at the time of registration.

In order to establish acceptance of the award and its terms, please follow these instructions:
Step 1: Please go to https://portal.fema.gov to accept or decline your award. This will take you to the Assistance

to Firefighters eGrants system. Enter your User Name and Password as requested on the login screen. Your
User Name and Password are the same as those used to complete the application on-line.

Once you are in the system, the Status page will be the first screen you see. On the right side of the Status
screen, you will see a column entitled Action. In this column, please select the View Award Package from the
drop down menu. Click Go to view your award package and indicate your acceptance or declination of award.
PLEASE NOTE: your period of performance has begun. If you wish to accept your grant, you should do so
immediately. When you have finished, we recommend printing your award package for your records.

Step 2: If you accept your award, you will see a link on the left side of the screen that says "Update 1199A" in
the Action column. Click this link. This link will take you to the SF-1199A, Direct Deposit Sign-up Form. Please
complete the SF-1199A on-line if you have not done so already. When you have finished, you must submit the
form electronically. Then, using the Print 1199A Button, print a copy and take it to your bank to have the bottom
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portion completed. Make sure your application number is on the form. After your bank has filled out their portion
of the form, you must fax a copy of the form to FEMA's SF-1199 Processing Staff at 301-998-8699. You should
keep the original form in your grant files. After the faxed version of your SF 1199A has been reviewed you will
receive an email indicating the form is approved. Once approved you will be able to request payments online. If
you have any questions or concems regarding your 1199A, or the process to request your funds, please call

(866) 274-0960.

Sincerely,

—

- N
"'—T,__‘. '__Sv ~
q—_-"f'_"‘_"‘"_‘.l-l-v__ e )

Brian E. Kamoie
Assistant Administrator
Grant Programs Directorate

~I1TAINNT &
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Summary Award Memo

SUMMARY OF ASSISTANCE ACTION
STAFFING FOR ADEQUATE FIRE AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE GRANTS

Application
INSTRUMENT: GRANT
AGREEMENT NUMBER: EMW-2014-FH-00131
GRANTEE: North Little Rock Fire Department
DUNS NUMBER: 075636001
AMOUNT: $2,632,824.00, Hiring

Project Description

The purpose of the Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response Program is to protect the
health and safety of the public and firefighting personnel against fire and fire-related hazards.

After careful consideration, FEMA has determined that the recipient’s project or projects
submitted as part of the recipient’s application, and detailed in the project narrative as well as the
request details section of the application - including budget information - was consistent with the
Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response Grant program's purpose and worthy of award.
The projects approved for funding are indicated by the budget or negotiation comments below. The
recipient shall perform the work described in the grant application for the recipient’s approved project
or projects as itemized in the request details section of the application and further described in the grant
application narrative. The content of the approved portions of the application — along with any
documents submitted with the recipient's application - are incorporated by reference into the terms of
the recipient’s award. The recipient may not change or make any material deviations from the approved
scope of work outlined in the above referenced sections of the application without prior written
approval, via amendment request, from FEMA.

Period of Performance

03-JAN-16 to 02-JAN-18

Amount Awarded

The amount of the award is detailed in the attached Obligating Document for Award. The
following are the budgeted estimates for object classes for this grant (including Federal share plus

recipient match):

Personnel: $1,571,904.00
Fringe Benefits $1 ,060,920.00
Travel $0.00
Equipment $0.00
Supplies $0.00
Contractual $0.00
Construction $0.00
Other $0.00
indirect Charges $0.00

e e g o i faasaeds/spec/view awar...  7/14/2015
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Total $2,632,824.00

NEGOTIATION COMMENTS IF APPLICABLE (max 8000 characters)
Any questions pertaining to your award package, please contact your GPD Grants Management
Specialist: Francisco Bernal at Francisco.Bemal2@fema.dhs.gov.

FEMA Officials

Program Officer: The Program Specialist is responsible for the technical monitoring of the stages
of work and technical performance of the activities described in the approved grant application. If you
have any programmatic questions regarding your grant, please call the AFG Help Desk at 866-274-
0960 to be directed to a program specialist.

Grants Assistance Officer: The Assistance Officer is the Federal official responsible for
negotiating, administering, and executing all grant business matters. The Officer conducts the final
business review of all grant awards and permits the obligation of federal funds. If you have any
questions regarding your grant please call ASK-GMD at 866-927-5646 to be directed to a Grants

Management Specialist.

Grants Operations POC: The Grants Management Specialist shall be contacted to address all
financial and administrative grant business matters for this grant award. If you have any questions
regarding your grant please call ASK-GMD at 866-927-5646 to be directed to a specialist.

ADDITIONAL REQUIREMENTS (IF APPLICABLE) (max 8000 characters)

Any questions pertaining to your award package, please contact your GPD Grants Management
Specialist: Francisco Bernal at Francisco.Bernal2@fema.dhs.gov.

e admin/awards/spec/view awar... 7/14/2015
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Agreement Articles

U.S. Department of Homeland Security

FEMA Washington, D.C. 20472

AGREEMENT ARTICLES

STAFFING FOR ADEQUATE FIRE AND EMERGENCY RESPONSE (SAFER) Grants

GRANTEE: North Little Rock Fire Department

PROGRAM: Staffing for Adequate Fire and Emergency Response (SAFER) - Hiring

AGREEMENT NUMBER: EMW-2014-FH-00131

AMENDMENT NUMBER:

Article |

Article |1

Article 111
Article 1V
Article V

Article VI

Article VI
Articte VIII
Article IX
Article X
Article XI
Article XII
Article X
Article XIV
Article XV
Article XVI
Article XVI|
Article XVIII

Article XIX
Article XX

e g e et faamrede/enec/view  awar...

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Assurances, Administrative Requirements and Cost
Principles

Acknowledgement of Federal Funding from DHS
Activities Conducted Abroad

Age Discrimination Act of 1975

Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990

Best Practices for Collection and Use of Personally
Identifiable Information (PII)

Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964

Civil Right Act of 1968

Copyright

Debarment and Suspension

Drug-Free Workplace Regulations

Duplication of Benefits

Energy Policy and Conservation Act

Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation
False Claims Act and Program Fraud Civil Remedies
Federal Debt Status

Fly America Act of 1974

Hotel and Motel Safety Act of 1990

Limited English Proficiency (Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title
V1)

Lobbying Prohibitions

7/14/2015
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Article XXI Non-supplanting Requirement

Article XXII Patents and Intellectual Property Rights

Article XXIII Procurement of Recovered Materials

Article XXIV Contract Provisions for Non-federal Entity Contracts
under Federal Awards

Article XXV SAFECOM

Article XXVI Terrorist Financing E.O. 13224

e on (e X ol the Edveaton smenmensof 972 (3.2

Article XXVII Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000

Article XXIX Rehabilitation Act of 1973

Article XXX USA Patriot Act of 2001

Article XXXI Use of DHS Seal, Logo and Flags

Article XXXII Whistleblower Protection Act

Article XXXIl DHS Specific Acknowledgements and Assurances

Article XXXIV ggt&rrr'\e r%fe,?]\gard Management and Universal Identifier

Article XXXV Animal Welfare Act of 1966

Article XXXVI Protection of Human Subjects

Article XXXVII K\gg;z?]?;zgrﬁy Reference of Funding Opportunity

Article XXXVIH Acceptance of Post Award Changes

L Assurances, Administrative Requirements and Cost Principles

Recipients of DHS federal financial assistance must complete OMB Standard
Form 4248 Assurances — Non-Construction Programs. Certain assurances in this
document may not be applicable to your program, and the awarding agency
may require applicants to certify additional assurances. Please contact the
program awarding office if you have any questions.

The administrative requirements and cost principles that apply to DHS award
recipients originate from:

2 C.F.R. Part 200, Uniform Administrative Requirement, Cost Principles, and Audit

Requirements for Federal Awards, as adopted by DHS at 2 C.F.R. Part 3002.

Il. Acknowledgement of Federal Funding from DHS

All recipients must acknowledge their use of federal funding when issuing
statements, press releases, requests for proposals, bid invitations, and other
documents describing projects or programs funded in whole or in part with

Federal funds.

1. Activities Conducted Abroad

All recipients must ensure that project activities carried on outside the United

States are coordinated as necessary with appropriate government authorities and
that appropriate licenses, permits, or approvals are obtained.

7/114/2015
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V.  Age Discrimination Act of 1975
All recipients must comply with the requirements of the Age Discrimination Act of

1975 (42 U.S.C. § 6101 et seq.), which prohibits discrimination on the basis of age in
any program or activity receiving Federal financial assistance.

V. Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990
All recipients must comply with the requirements of Titles I, Il, and Ill of the
Americans with Disabilities Act, which prohibits recipients from discriminating on the
basis of disability in the operation of public entities, public and private transportation
systems, places of public accommodation, and certain testing entities (42 U.S.C.
§§ 12101-12213).

V]. Best Practices for Collection and Use of Personally Identifiable Information (PII)
All recipients who collect Pl are required to have a publically-available privacy
policy that describes what Pl they collect, how they use the PIl, whether they
share PIl with third parties, and how individuals may have their Pl corrected

where appropriate.

Award recipients may also find as a useful resource the DHS Privacy Impact
Assessments: Privacy Guidance and Privacy template respectively.

VIl  Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964
All recipients must comply with the requirements of Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of
1964 (42 U.S.C. § 2000d et seq.), which provides that no person in the United States
will, on the grounds of race, color, or national origin, be excluded from participation
in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to discrimination under any program
or activity receiving Federal financial assistance. Implementing regulations for the
Act are found at 6 C.F.R. Part 21 and 44 C.F.R. Part7.

VIIl.  Civil Rights Act of 1968
All recipients must comply with Title Vil of the Civil Rights Act of 1968, which prohibits
recipients from discriminating in the sale, rental, financing, and advertising of
dwellings, or in the provision of services in connection therewith, on the basis of
race, color, national origin, religion, disability, familial status, and sex (42US.C §
3601 et seq.), as implemented by the Department of Housing and Urban
Development at 24 C.F.R. Part 100. The prohibition on disability discrimination
includes the requirement that new multifamily housing with four or more dwelling
units—i.e., the public and common use areas and individual apartment units (all
units in buildings with elevators and ground-floor units in buildings without
elevators)—be designed and constructed with certain accessible features (see 24
C.F.R.§ 100.201).

[X. Copyright
All recipients must affix the applicable copyright notices of 17 U.S.C. §§ 401 or 402

and an acknowledgement of Government sponsorship (including award number) to
any work first produced under Federal financial assistance awards, unless the work
includes any information that is otherwise controlled by the Government (e.9.,
classified information or other information subject to national security or export
control laws or regulations).

X. Debarment and Suspension

el shoo e admin/awards/spec/view_awar... 7/14/2015
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All recipients must comply with Executive Orders 12549 and 12689, which provide
protection against waste, fraud and abuse by debarring or suspending those
persons deemed irresponsible in their dealings with the Federal government.

X|. Drug-Free Workplace Regulations
All recipients must comply with the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988 (41 U.S.C.
701 et seq.), which requires that all organizations receiving grants from any Federal
agency agree to maintain 2 drug-free workplace. DHS has adopted the Act's
implementing regulations at 2 C.F.R Part 3001.

FAVARLA N

X|l. Duplication of Benefits

Any cost allocable to a particular Federal award provided for in 2 C.F.R. Part 200
Subpart E may not be charged to other Federal awards to overcome fund
deficiencies, to avoid restrictions imposed by Federal statutes, regulations, or terms
and conditions of the Federal awards, or for other reasons. However, this
prohibition would not preclude the non-Federal entity from shifting costs that are
allowable under two or more Federal awards in accordance with existing Federal
statutes, regulations, of the terms and conditions of the Federal awards.

XIll. Energy Policy and Conservation Act
All recipients must comply with the requirements of 42 U.S.C. § 6201 which contain
policies relating to energy efficiency that aré defined in the state energy
conservation plan issues in compliance with this Act.

XIV. Reporting Subawards and Executive Compensation
a. Reporting of first-tier subawards.

1. Applicability. Unless you are exempt as provided in paragraph d. of this

award term, you must report each action that obligates $25,000 or more in
Federal funds that does not include Recovery funds (as defined in section

1512(a)(2) of the American Recovery and Reinvestment Act of 2009, Pub.
L. 111-5) fora subaward to an entity (see definitions in paragraph e. of this
award term).

2. Where and when to report.

i You must report each obligating action described in paragraph al.
of this award term to hitp://www.fsrs.gov.

ii. For subaward information, report N0 |ater than the end of the
month following the month in which the obligation was made. (For
example, if the obligation was made on November 7, 2010, the
obligation must be reported by no later than December 31, 2010))

3 What to report. You must report the information about each obligating
action that the submission instructions posted at hitp:/fwww.fsrs.gov

specify.

e e farma smv/FemaFireGrant/ﬁregrant/jsp/ﬁreﬂadmin/awards/spec/view_awar... 7/14/2015





Award Package pPage 10 of 20

b. Reporting Total Compensation of Recipient Executives.

1. Apph’cabﬂr’ty and what to report. You must report total compensation for
each of your five most highty compensated executives for the preceding

completed fiscal year, if—

i. the total Federal funding authorized t0 date under this award is
$25,000 or more,

ii. inthe preceding fiscal year, you received—

(A) 80 percent of more of your annual gross revenues
from Federal procurement contracts (and
subcontracts) and Federal financial assistance
subject to the Transparency Act, as defined at 2 CFR
170.320 (and subawards); and

B) $25,000‘000 or more in annual gross revenues
from Federal procurement contracts (and
subcontracts) and Federal financial assistance
subject to the Transparency Act, as defined at 2 CFR
170.320 (and subawards); and

ii. The public does not have access t0 information about the
compensation of the executives through periodic reports filed under
section 13(a) of 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15
u.s.C. 78m(a), 780(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986. (To determine if the public has access to the
compensation information, see the U.S. gecurity and Exchange
Commission total compensation filings at
htt,o://www.sec.gov/answers/execomp.htm.)

2 Where and when to report. You must report executive total compensation
described in paragraph b.1. of this award term:

i, As part of your registration profile at https://WWW.sam.gov.

ii. By the end of the month following the month in which this award is
made, and annually thereafter.

c. Reporting of Total Compensation of subrecipient Executives.

s Apph’cabiﬁty and what to report. Unless you aré exempt as provided in
paragraph d. of this award term, for each first-tier subrecipient under this
award, you shall report the names and total compensation of each of the
subrecipient's five most highty compensated executives for the
subrecipient's preceding completed fiscal year, if—

i.inthe subrecipient's preceding fiscal year, the subrecipient
received—

(A) 80 percent of more of its annual gross revenues
from Federal procurement contracts (and

L eana agy/FemaF ireGrant/ﬁregram/jsp/ fire_admin/ awards/ spec/view_awar.. 7/14/2015
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subcontracts) and Federal financial assistance
subject to the Transparency Act, as defined at 2 CFR
170.320 (and subawards), and

(B) $25.000.000 or more in annual gross revenues
from Federal procurement contracts (and
subcontracts), and Federal financial assistance
subject to the Transparency Act (and subawards);
and

i The public does not have access to information about the
compensation of the executives through periodic reports filed under
section 13(a) of 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (15
U.S.C. 78m(a), 78o(d)) or section 6104 of the Internal Revenue
Code of 1986. (To determine if the public has access to the
compensation information, see the U.S. Security and Exchange
Commission total compensation filings at
http:/Mww.sec.gov/answers/execomp.htm.)

2 Where and when to report. You must report subrecipient executive total
compensation described in paragraph c.1. of this award term:

i. Tothe recipient.
ii. By the end of the month following the month during which you
make the subaward. For example, if a subaward is obligated on any
date during the month of October of a given year (i.e., between
October 1 and 31), you must report any required compensation
information of the subrecipient by November 30 of that year.
d. Exemptions
Iif, in the previous tax year, you had gross income, from all sources, under
$300,000, you aré exempt from the requirements to report:
i, Subawards,
and

ii. The total compensation of the five most highly compensated
executives of any subrecipient.

o. Definitions. For purposes of this award term:
1. Entity means all of the following, as defined in 2 CER part 25

i. A Governmental organization, which is a State, local government,
or Indian tribe;

ii. A foreign public entity,
iii. A domestic or foreign nonprofit organization;

iv. A domestic of foreign for-profit organization;

. eama o0V/IF emaFireGrant/ firegrant/jsp/ fire_admin/ awards/spec/view_awar.. 7/14/2015
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but only as a subrecipient under an award or

subaward to a non-Federal entity.

2. Executive means officers, managing
management positions.

3 Subaward.

partners, of any other employees in

i This term means a legal instrument to provide support for the

performance of any portion of the

substantive project or program for

which you received this award and that you a$ the recipient award to

an eligible subrecipient.

i. The term does not include your procurement of property and

services needed to carry out th
explanation, se€ Sec.

e project or program (for further

210 of the attachment to OMB Circular A-

133, “Audits of States.focal Governments, and Non-Profit

Organizaﬁons").

iii. A subaward may be provided through any legal agreement,
including an agreement that you or a subrecipient considers a

contract.

4 Subrecipient means an entity that:

i. Receives a subaward from you

and

i Is accountable to you for the use of the Federal funds

the subaward.

5. Total compensation means the cas
the executive during the recipient's of
and includes the following

i. Salary and bonus.

(for more information seé 1

(the recipient) under this award,

provided by

h and noncash dollar value earned by

subrecipient's preceding fiscal year
7 CFR 229.402(c)(2)):

i Awards of stock, stock options, and stock appreciation rights. Use

the dollar amount recognized

for financial statement reporting

purposes with respect to the fiscal year in accordance with the

Statement of Financial Accounting

Standards No. 123 (Revised

2004) (FAS 123R), Shared Based Payments.

iii. Earnings for services under non-equity incentive plans. This does

not include group life, health,
reimbursement plans that do

iy. Change in pension value. This is the change in

hospitalization of medical

not discriminate in favor of executives,
and are available generally 10 all salaried employees.

defined benefit and actuarial pension plans.

v. Above-market earnings on
tax-qualified.

B N o anv/FemaFireGrant/ﬁregrant/jsp/ﬁr

deferred compensation which is not
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vi. Other compensation, if the aggregate value of all such other
compensation (€.9. severance, termination payments, value of life
insurance paid on behalf of the employee, perquisites of property)

for the executive exceeds $10,000.

X\/. False Claims Act and Program Fraud Civil Remedies
All recipients must comply with the requirements of 31 U.S.C. § 3729 which set forth
that no recipient of federal payments shall submit a false claim for payment. See
also 38 U.S.C. § 3801-3812 which details the administrative remedies for false claims

and statements made.

X\/|. Federal Debt Status
All recipients are required to be non-delinquent in their repayment of any Federal
debt. Examples of relevant debt include delinquent payroli and other taxes, audit
disallowances, and benefit overpayments. See OMB Gircular A-129 and form SF-
424B, item number 17 for additional information and guidance.

XVIl. Fly America Act of 1974

All recipients must comply with Preference for U.S. Flag Air Carriers: (air carriers

holding certificates under 49 U.S.C. § 41 102) for international air transportation of
people and property to the extent that such service is available, in accordance with
the International Air Transportation Fair Competitive Practices Act of 1974 (49
U.S.C. § 40118) and the interpretative guidelines issued by the Comptroller General
of the United States in the March 31, 1981, amendment to Comptroiier-General
Decision B-138942.

XVIIl. Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990
In accordance with Section 6 of the Hotel and Motel Fire Safety Act of 1990, 13
U.S.C. §2225a, all recipients must ensure that all conference, meeting, convention,
or training space funded in whole or in part with Federal funds complies with the
fire prevention and control guidelines of the Federal Fire Prevention and Control
Act of 1974, as amended, 15 U.S.C. §2225.

X|X. Limited English Proficiency (Civil Rights Act of 1964, Title V1)

All recipients must comply with the Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title V1)

prohibition against discrimination on the basis of national origin, which requires that
recipients of federal financial assistance take reasonable steps 10 provide
meaningful access to persons with limited English proficiency (LEP) to their
programs and services. Providing meaningful access for persons with LEP may
entail providing language assistance services, including oral interpretation and
written translation. In order to facilitate compliance with Title VI, recipients are
encouraged to consider the need for language services for LEP persons served or
encountered in developing program budgets. Executive Order 13166, Improving
Access to Services for Persons with Limited English Proficiency (August 11, 2000),
requires federal agencies to issue guidance to recipients, assisting such
organizations and entities in understanding their language access obligations.
DHS published the required recipient guidance in April 2011, DHS Guidance to
Federal Financial Assistance Recipients Regarding Title V| Prohibition Against

e neaGrant/firegrant/jsp/ fire_admin/awards/ spec/view_awar... 7/14/2015
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National Origin Discrimination Affecting Limited English Proficient Persons, 76 Fed.
Reg. 21755-21768, (April 18, 2011). The Guidance provides helpful information
such as how a recipient can determine the extent of its obligation to provide
language services; selecting language services; and elements of an effective plan
on language assistance for LEP persons. For additional assistance and
information regarding language access obligations, please refer to the DHS
Recipient Guidance htt s /lwww.dhs, gov/guidance- ublished-help-department-su ported-

organizations—grovide-mganingful-access-geggle«limited and additional resources on
http:/Awww.lep.gov.

XX. Lobbying Prohibitions
All recipients must comply with 31 U.S.C. §1352, which provides that none of the
funds provided under an award may be expended by the recipient to pay any
person to influence, or attempt to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a
Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a
Member of Congress in connection with any Federal action concerning the award

or renewal.

XX|. Non-supplanting Requirement
All recipients who receive awards made under programs that prohibit supplanting
by law must ensure that Federal funds do not replace (supplant) funds that have
been budgeted for the same purpose through non-Federal sources. Where federal
statues for a particular program prohibits supplanting, applicants or recipients may
be required to demonstrate and document that a reduction in non-Federal
resources occurred for reasons other than the receipt of expected receipt of

Federal funds.

XX|l. Patents and Intellectual Property Rights
Unless otherwise provided by law, recipients are subject to the Bayh-Dole Act, Pub.

L No.96-517, as amended, and codified in 35 U.S.C. & 200 et seq. All recipients are
subject to the specific requirements governing the development, reporting, and
disposition of rights to inventions and patents resulting from financial assistance
awards are in 37 C.F.R. Part 401 and the standard patent rights clause in 37 CF.R.
§ 401.14.

XXIIl. Procurement of Recovered Materials
All recipients must comply with section 6002 of the Solid Waste Disposal Act, as
amended by the Resource Conservation and Recovery Act. The requirements of
Section 6002 include procuring only items designated in guidelines of the
Environmental Protection Agency (EPA) at 40 C.F.R. Part 247 that contain the
highest percentage of recovered materials practicable, consistent with maintaining
2 satisfactory level of competition, where the purchase price of the item exceeds
$10,000 or the value of the quantity acquired by the preceding fiscal year exceeded
$10,000; procuring solid waste management services in a manner that maximizes
energy and resource recovery, and establishing an affirmative procurement
program for procurement of recovered materials identified in the EPA guidelines.

XXIV. Contract Provisions for Non-federal Entity Contracts under Federal Awards
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plified acquisition threshold set at $150,000.

All recipients who have contracts exceeding the acquisition threshold
currently set at $150,000, which is the inflation adjusted amount
determined by Civilian Agency Acquisition Council and the Defense
Acquisition Regulation Council as authorized by 41 U.S.C. §1908, must
address administrative, contractual, or legal remedies in instance
where contractors violate or breach contract terms and provide for
such sanctions and penalties as appropriate.

b.Contracts in excess of $10,000.

All recipients that have contracts exceeding $10,000 must
address termination for cause and for convenience by the
non-Federal entity including the manner by which it will be
effected and the basis for settlement.

SAFECOM

All recipients who receive awards made under programs that provide
emergency communication equipment and its related activities must
comply with the SAEFECOM Guidance for Emergency Communication
Grants, including provisions on technical standards that ensure and
enhance interoperable communications.

Terrorist Financing E.O. 13224

All recipients must comply with U.S. Executive Order 13224 and U.S. law
that prohibit transactions with, and the provisions of resources and
support to, individuals and organizations associated with terrorism. It
is the legal responsibility of recipients to ensure compliance with the
E.O. and laws.

Title 1X of the Education Amendments of 1972 (Equal Opportunity in
Education Act)

All recipients must comply with the requirements of Title IX of the
Education Amendments of 1972 (20 U.S.C. § 1681 et seq.), which
provides that no person in the United States will, on the basis of sex,
be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be
subjected to discrimination under any educational program or activity
receiving Federal financial assistance. Implementing regulations are
codified at 6 C.F.R. Part 17 and 44 C.F.R. Part 19

XXVIII. Trafficking Victims Protection Act of 2000

"~

All recipients must comply with the requirements of the government-
wide award term which implements Section 106(g) of the Trafficking
Victims Protection Act (TVPA) of 2000, as amended (22 U.S.C. § 7104).
This is implemented in accordance with OMB Interim Final Guidance,

e eI ee admin/awards/spec/view_awar...
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Federal Register, Volume 72, No. 218, November 13, 2007. Full text of
the award term is located at 2 CFR § 175.15.

Rehabilitation Act of 1973

All recipients of must comply with the requirements of Section 504 of
the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, 29 U.S.C. § 794, as amended, which
provides that no otherwise qualified handicapped individual in the
United States will, solely by reason of the handicap, be excluded from
participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be subjected to
discrimination under any program or activity receiving Federal financial
assistance. These requirements pertain to the provision of benefits or
services as well as to employment.

USA Patriot Act of 2001

All recipients must comply with requirements of the Uniting and
Strengthening America by Providing Appropriate Tools Required to
Intercept and Obstruct Terrorism Act (USA PATRIOT Act), which
amends 18 U.S.C. §§ 175-175¢c. Among other things, the USA
PATRIOT Act prescribes criminal penalties for possession of any
biological agent, toxin, or delivery system of a type or in a quantity that
is not reasonably justified by a prophylactic, protective, bona fide
research, or other peaceful purpose.

Use of DHS Seal, Logo and Flags

All recipients must obtain DHS's approval prior to using the DHS seal
(s), logos, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of DHS
agency officials, including use of the United States Coast Guard seal,
logo, crests or reproductions of flags or likenesses of Coast Guard

officials. .

Whistleblower Protection Act

All recipients must comply with the statutory requirements for
whistleblower protections (if applicable) at 10 U.S.C § 2409, 41 US.C §
4712, and 10 U.S.C. § 2324, 41 U.S.C. §§ 4304 and 4310.

DHS Specific Acknowledgements and Assurances

All recipients must acknowledge and agree—and require any sub-
recipients, contractors, successors, transferees, and assignees
acknowledge and agree—to comply with applicable provisions
governing DHS access to records, accounts, documents, information,

facilities, and staff.

1. Recipients must cooperate with any compliance review or complaint
investigation conducted by DHS.

2. Recipients must give DHS access to and the right to examine and
copy records, accounts, and other documents and sources of
information related to the grant and permit access to facilities,

vt = demntimlawvrardc/ener/view awar
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personnel, and other individuals and information as may be necessary,
as required by DHS regulations and other applicable laws or program

guidance.

3. Recipients must submit timely, complete, and accurate reports to the
appropriate DHS officials and maintain appropriate backup
documentation to support the reports.

4. Recipients must comply with all other special reporting, data
collection, and evaluation requirements, as prescribed by law or
detailed in program guidance.

5. If, during the past three years, the recipient has been accused of
discrimination on the grounds of race, color, national origin (including
limited English proficiency), sex, age, disability, religion, or familial
status, the recipient must provide a list of all such proceedings,
pending or completed, including outcome and copies of settlement
agreements to the DHS awarding office and the DHS Office of Civil
Rights and Civil Liberties.

8. In the event any court or administrative agency makes a finding of
discrimination on grounds of race, color, national origin (including
limited English proficiency), sex, age, disability, religion, or familial
status against the recipient, or the recipient settles a case or matter
alleging such discrimination, recipients must forward a copy of the
complaint and findings to the DHS Component and/or awarding office.

The United States has the right to seek judicial enforcement of these
obligations.

XXXIV. System of Award Management and Universal Identifier Requirements

A. Requirement for System of Award Management

Unless exempted from this requirement under 2 CFR 25.110, you as
the recipient must maintain the currency of your information in the SAM
until you submit the final financial report required under this award or
receive the final payment, whichever is later. This requires that you
review and update the information at least annually after the initial
registration, and more frequently if required by changes in your
information or another award term.

B. Requirement for unique entity identifier
If authorized to make subawards under this award, you:

1. Must notify potential subrecipients that no entity (see
definition in paragraph C of this award term) may receive a

subaward from you unless the entity has provided its unique
entity identifier to you.

2. May not make a subaward to an entity unless the entity has
provided its unique entity identifier to you.

C. Definitions

e P Y B, (P S .
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For purposes of this award term:

1. System of Award Management(SAM) means the Federal
repository into which an entity must provide information
required for the conduct of business as a recipient. Additional
information about registration procedures may be found at the
SAM Internet site (currently at http://www.sam.gov).

2. Unique entity identifier means the identifier required for SAM
registration to uniquely identify business entities.

3. Entity, as it is used in this award term, means all of the
following, as defined at 2 CFR part 25, subpart C:

a. A Governmental organization, which is a State, local
government, or Indian Tribe;

b. A foreign public entity;
c. A domestic or foreign nonprofit organization;
d. A domestic or foreign for-profit organization; and

e. A Federal agency, but only as a subrecipient under
an award or subaward to a non-Federal entity.

4. Subaward:

a. This term means a legal instrument to provide
support for the performance of any portion of the
substantive project or program for which you received
this award and that you as the recipient award to an

eligible subrecipient.

b. The term does not include your procurement of
property and services needed to carry out the project or
program (for further explanation, see 2 CFR 200.330).

c. A subaward may be provided through any legal
agreement, including an agreement that you consider a

contract.

5. Subrecipient means an entity that:

a. Receives a subaward from you under this award; and

b. Is accountable to you for the use of the Federal funds
provided by the subaward.

XXXV. Animal Welfare Act of 1966

All recipients of financial assistance will comply with the requirements
of the Animal Welfare Act, as amended (7 U.S.C. §2131 et seq.),
which requires that minimum standards of care and treatment be

~ i1 A Il
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provided for vertebrate animals bred for commercial sale, used in
research, transported commercially, or exhibited to the public.
Recipients must establish appropriate policies and procedures for the
humane care and use of animals based on the Guide for the Care and
Use of Laboratory Animals and comply with the Public Health Service
Policy and Government Principles Regarding the Care and Use of

Animals.

XXXVI. Protection of Human Subjects
All recipients of financial assistance will comply with the requirements

of the Federal regulations at 45 CFR Part 46, which requires that
recipients comply with applicable provisions/law for the protection of
human subjects for purposes of research. Recipients must also comply
with the requirements in DHS Management Directive 026-04,
Protection of Human Subjects, prior to implementing any work with
human subjects. For purposes of 45 CFR Part 46, research means a
systematic investigation, including research, development, testing, and
evaluation, designed to develop or contribute to general knowledge.
Activities that meet this definition constitute research for purposes of
this policy, whether or not they are conducted or supported under a
program that is considered research for other purposes. The
regulations specify additional protections for research involving human
fetuses, pregnant women, and neonates (Subpart B); prisoners
(Subpart C); and children (Subpart D). The use of autopsy materials is
governed by applicable State and local law and is not directly regulated
by 45 CFR Part 46.

XXXVII. Incorporation by Reference of Funding Opportunity Announcement
The Funding Opportunity Announcement for this program is hereby
incorporated into your award agreement by reference. By accepting this
award, the recipient agrees that all allocations and use of funds under
this grant will be in accordance with the requirements contained in the
Funding Opportunity Announcement.

XXXVII. Acceptance of Post Award Changes
In the event FEMA determines that changes are necessary to the

award document after an award has been made, including changes to
period of performance or terms and conditions, recipients will be
notified of the changes in writing. Once notification has been made,
any subsequent request for funds will indicate recipient acceptance of
the changes to the award. If you have questions about these
procedures, please contact the AFG Help Desk at 1-866-274-0960, or
send an email to firegrants@dhs.gov.
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FEDERAL EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT AGENCY
OBLIGATING DOCUMENT FOR AWARD/AMENDMENT

1. AGREEMENT NO. 2. AMENDMENT 3. RECIPIENT NO. 4. TYPE OF 5. CONTROL NO.

EMW-2014-FH-00131 NO. 71-6009176 ACTION WX02758N2015T
B AWARD

6. RECIPIENT NAME AND 7. ISSUING OFFICE AND ADDRESS 8. PAYMENT OFFICE AND ADDRESS

ADDRESS Grant Programs Directorate FEMA, Financial Services Branch

North Little Rock Fire 500 C Street, S.W. 500 C Street, S.W,, Room 723

Department Washington DC, 20472 Washington DC, 20472

723 Maple Street POC: Sylvia Carroll 202-646-3503

North Little Rock
Arkansas, 72114-4623
9. NAME OF RECIPIENT  PHONE NO. 10. NAME OF PROJECT COORDINATOR PHONE NO.
PROJECT OFFICER 5013405410 Catherine Patterson 1-866-274-0960
Robert Barton
11. EFFECTIVE DATE OF 12. METHOD OF 13. ASSISTANCE ARRANGEMENT 14. PERFORMANCE PERIOD
THIS ACTION PAYMENT Cost Sharing From:03-JAN-16  To0:02-JAN-18
03-JAN-16 SF-270

Budget Period

From:16-APR-15 T0:30-SEP-15

15. DESCRIPTION OF ACTION
a. {Indicate funding data for awards or financial changes)

PROGRAM  CFDANO.  ACCOUNTING DATA  PRIOR AMOUNT CURRENT CUMULATIVE
NAME (ACCS CODE) TOTAL  AWARDED THIS TOTAL AWARD
ACRONYM XXXX-XXX-XXXXXX-  AWARD ACTION NON-
XXXXX-XXXX-XXXX-X +OR () FEDERAL
COMMITMENT
SAFER 97.083  2015-F4-C211-P4310000- $0.00  $2,632,824.00 $2,632,824.00 $0.00
4101-D
TOTALS $0.00  $2,632,824.00  $2,632,824.00 $0.00

b. To describe changes other than funding data or financial changes, attach schedule and check here.

N/A

16a. FOR NON-DISASTER PROGRAMS: RECIPIENT IS REQUIRED TO SIGN AND RETURN THREE (3) COPIES OF THIS DOCUMENT
TO FEMA (See Block 7 for address)

SAFER recipients are not required to sign and return copies of this document. However, recipients should print and keep a copy of this
document for their records.

16b. FOR DISASTER PROGRAMS: RECIPIENT IS NOT REQUIRED TO SIGN

This assistance is subject to terms and conditions attached to this award notice or by incorporated reference in program legislation cited
above.

17. RECIPIENT SIGNATORY OFFICIAL (Name and Title) ‘ DATE

N/A N/A

18, FEMA SIGNATORY OFFICIAL (Name and Title) DATE
16-JUN-15

Rosalie Vega
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN CITY-OWNED
VEHICLES, OUTDATED PARTS, AND OTHER EQUIPMENT
AS SURPLUS; PROVIDING FOR AUCTION THEREOF; AND
FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, from time to time, the City of North Little Rock (“the City”)
replaces city-owned vehicles, parts and other equipment and disposes of the replaced
items through a sale; and

WHEREAS, the City has now accumulated a surplus of vehicles, outdated parts
for vehicles, tractors and bush hogs that have been replaced, and there is a need to
dispose of these items through an auction (see Exhibit “A” attached hereto); and

WHEREAS, GovDeals provides a unique, state-of-the art, online auction service
which allows cities to conduct online transactions for the sale of surplus, abandoned and
confiscated equipment and property utilizing the global reach of the internet; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the City and its residents that the surplus
city-owned vehicles, outdated parts for vehicles, tractors and bush hogs which have
been accumulated be disposed of through the GovDeals online auction website.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the items listed on Exhibit “A” attached hereto are hereby
declared to be surplus equipment, and the Director of Commerce is directed to sell the
items at an auction through GovDeals, an online auction website utilized by
municipalities nationwide for the sale of surplus equipment.

SECTION 2: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPOMN ATTEST:

ﬁ Z</u/ ////7

Mayfﬁ os A Smith S Diane Whitbey, City Clerk






APPROVED AS TO FORM:

C. JasonC fer, ClMttomey

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FILED } 6L AM.

[m Lﬁdu,u

DATE '7 ?.l—l%

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

\-

RECEIVED B\(Vﬁ ; })/ 7
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EXHIBIT “A”

ITEMS FOR AUCTION
UNIT PROBLEMS WITH
DEPT. # YEAR & DESCRIPTION SERIALORVIN # MILEAGE/HRS VEHICLE
NEEDS WINDSHIELD,
POLICE 108 2002 CHEVY IMPALA 2G1WF55K929294127 BRAKES & HAS OIL LEAKS
POLICE N/A HELICOPTER/VAN 1GBHG31K2S5F168372 285670 BRAKES
POLICE 182 2002 DODGE INTREPID 2B3HD46R2YH321826 104257 RUNS WITH ENGINE NOISE
POLICE 184 2002 DODGE INTREPID 2B3HD46R8YH321829 116780 RUNS GOOD
POLICE 81 1999 DODGE INTREPID 2B3HD46R4XT1760606 95097
QTY 1 14.9-24 MASSEY
TIRES FURGESON WHEEL USED
TIRES QTY1 14.9-24 BRAND NEW TIRE
TIRES QTY 1 6.50-10 NEW WITH TUBE
TIRES QTY 5 9X12.50-1.5 USED /SUPER TERRA GRIP
TIRES QTY 1 26X12.00-12 USED /SUPER TERRA GRIP
TIRES QTY 3 245/70R19.5 SCRAPED USED
TIRES QTY 1 235/75R17.5 SCRAPED USED
TIRES QTY1 18.4-30 USED SCRAP TRACTOR
TIRES QTY 1 18.4-34 USED SCRAP TRACTOR
QTY 1 P205/65R15
TIRES WHEEL FORD PLU USED
QTY 2 7.50-16 ALLIANCE
TIRES RIB TIRES
STREET 1 84" ALAMO BUSHHOG AG84B-01480
STREET 2 84" ALAMO BUSHHOG AG84B-01480
STREET 3 84" ALAMO BUSHHOG NO ID PLATE
PARTS FOR BUSHHOGS
STREET QTY 8- SETS BLADES- 7520
QTY 7- SKID SHOES-
STREET 0622000001
QTY 4- TAIL WHEEL
STREET YOKES- 0585020201
Has faulty Air Bag Airming
UAD 6 97 CHEVY BLAZER 1GNDT13W4VK157922 112,450 Sensor
Veh Clark 2000Ib Fork Lift
Maint 21 C500-25P 235-676-2238 CARBURETOR
UNIT PROBLEMS WITH
DEPT. # YEAR & DESCRIPTION SERIAL OR VIN # MILEAGE/HRS VEHICLE
POLICE 47 06 CHEVY IMPALA 2G1WS551569318495 180913 miles | Transmission out
GOLF 11 FORD TRACTOR 3000 299930 1620 HRS Won't run






DISCRIPTION COST
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LUBE SITE GLASS OILERS 18.62
ROLL OF ORANGE DOUBLE HOSE

DODGE HUBCAP TRIM RINGS #52006560

CB ANTENNAS

BOX RADIATOR HOSES

FORD 96' CROW VIC ENGINE FAN

BOXES GATES 5" RUBBER FLEX EXHAUST HOSE
BOX STROBE LIGHT PARTS

BOX HUB CAPS, WINDOW SWITCHES, MISC PARTS
ELECTRIC RV STEP

TMF-50-604419 H/FILTER (TANK)

106418 H. TANK FILTER

TMS-50-100 H. TANK FILTER

100057 H/TANK FILTERS

42075 A/C DELCO FUEL PUMP SANT. #41

ROLLS 1" THICK RUBBER

25513389 ACCELERATOR TRANS. KICK DOWN
CABLE(GM)

D6TZ-3A540-A P/S CYLINDER ASSY (ONE MORE FORD)
15996199 CHEVY GM KICKDOWN CABLE

5/16" HYDRAULIC HOSE

TIME CLOCK
ELECTRIC TYPE WRITER
PAPER TOWEL DISPENSER

HP PRINTER

N R NP RNRRRPBNRNOGOANDOD

[ N R T

9 GM 25649713 WIPER BLADES NOT FOUND
11 GM 15153642 WIPER BLADES NOT FOUND
6 AND 1571078 18" WIPER BLADES NOT FOUND
4 SETS FLEETRITE 1690023C91 WIPER BLADES NOT FOUND
1 GM 10283602 WIPER BLADES NOT FOUND
1 GM 25683175 WIPER BLADES NOT FOUND
3 1301A SIGNAL STAT LIGHT NOT FOUND
8 1319A SIGNAL STAT LIGHT NOT FOUND
5 8912A SIGNAL STAT LIGHT LENS NOT FOUND
2 TK91202R MACK TRUCK LIGHT 2 IN STOCK $18.24
4 (TK)91202Y MACK TRUCK LIGHT NOT FOUND

2 TK99168R TRUCK LENS NONE IN STOCK





2 TK99168Y TRUCK LENS NONE IN STOCK
1 TK1319A TRUCK LIGHT NOT FOUND
1 4112 SIGNAL LIGHT NOT FOUND
10 OR 12  ASSORTED LIGHT BULBS STROBE LIGHTS
2 5135A ECCO LIGHT NONE IN STOCK
1 312 ECCO LIGHT NOT FOUND
i 37944 ECCO LIGHT NOT FOUND
QUANITY DISCRIPTION COosT
3 DAYCO AP43 BELT NOT FOUND
1 NAPA 0606650 BELT NOT FOUND
1 GATES A 32 BELT NOT FOUND
2 MOTORCRAFT JC 477 BELT NOT FOUND
2 GATES 7435 BELT NOT FOUND
1 GATES 7450 BELT NOT FOUND
1 GATES 9480 BELT NOT FOUND
5 GATES 9447 BELT NONE STOCK $12.50
1 GATES 9341 BELT NOT FOUND
1 GATES 9600 BELT NONE STOCK $13.00
2 GATES 8455 BELT NOT FOUND
1 GATES A 60 BELT NOT FOUND
2 GATES B 69 BELT NOT FOUND
TOP PERFORMANCE P9570
1 BELT NOT FOUND
3 GATES 7650 BELT NOT FOUND
2 GATES 7550 BELT NOT FOUND
2 GATES 7570 BELT NOT FOUND
1 DAYCO 17680 BELT NOT FOUND
1 GATES B 61 BELT NOT FOUND
1 GATES 9600 BELT NONE STOCK $13.00
1 GATES 8435 BELT NOT FOUND
1 GATES 7250 BELT NOT FOUND
1 GATES 9630 BELT NOT FOUND
1 DETROIT 5131395 BELT NOT FOUND
1 GATES K061005 BELT NOT FOUND
3 GATES K060598 BELT NOT FOUND
1 GATES K061000 BELT NOT FOUND
1 GATES 6875 BELT NOT FOUND
2 GATES 1250 BELT NOT FOUND
1 GATES 7440 BELT NOT FOUND
1 GATE 9435 NOT FOUND
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MOTORCRAFT JK6-514
GATES K060650
MOTORCRAFT JK6-985
GATES KO80560
GATES K040384
GATES K050400
GATES K040384
GATES K050720
GATES 9650

NAPA 25-15755/9620
GATES 9345

GATES 9670

DAYCO 41310

GATES 9330

GATES 070705

GATES 9745

GATES 9740
MOTORCRAFT JK 7-863-B
GATES 3Vv850

GATES 9570

GATES 9610

DAYCO 17700

GATES 9770

GATES 9520

NAPA 19185

GATES K080560
NAPA 16755

GATES K060975
GOODYEAR
4080690/8PK1755

GM 15670937/K070705
GATES K060935

GM 10105246/K060945
MTD BELT 954-0465

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NONE STOCK $20.20
NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NONE STOCK -NO COST
NONE STOCK $18.50
NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NONE STOCK $25.00/NEW $24.50

NOT FOUND
NOT FOUND
NOT FOUND
NOT FOUND
NOT FOUND





QUANTY DISCRIPTION COST
7 WIX 1455 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
2 WIX 51062 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
2 WIX 51161 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
1 WIX 51163 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
1 WIX 42729 AIR FILTER NONE IN STOCK-NO COST
7 WIX 1581 OIL FILTER 7 IN STOCK $8.40
1 WIX 3354 FUEL FILTER NOT FOUND
4 WIX 1812 (84401812) OIL FILTER NONE IN STOCK-NO COST
3 WIX 1287 OIL FILTER 3 IN STOCK $14.01
2 WIX 1197 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
1 WIX 46673 AIR FILTER NOT FOUND
2 WIX 1138 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
1 WIX 51189 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
3 WIX 1521 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
2 WIX 51038 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
5 WiX 33097 FUEL FILTER 3 IN STOCK $9.61
1 WIX 51356 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
5 WIX 51810 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
12 WIX 33120 FUEL FILTER NOT FOUND
7 WIX 33353 FUEL FILTER NOT FOUND
7 WIX 3318 FUEL FILTER NONSTOCK $19.50
1 WIX 33366 FUEL FILTER NOT FOUND
8 WIX 3123 FUEL FILTER 7 IN STOCK $12.85
4 WIX 3124 FUEL FILTER NOT FOUND
2 WIX 33636 FUEL FILTER NOT FOUND
1 WIX 3316 FUEL FILTER NOT FOUND
2 WIX 3373 FUEL FILTER NOT FOUND
2 WIX 3511 FUEL FILTER NOT FOUND
2 WIX 3296 FUEL FILTER NONE IN STOCK $11.35
2 WIX 3189 FUEL FILTER NOT FOUND
1 WIX 51531 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
i WIX 51503 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
1 WIX 51795 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
1 WIX 51408 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
4 WIX 51460 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
1 WIX 51459 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
1 WIX 46416 AIR FILTER NON IN STOCK $13.74
1 WIX 1138 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
1 WIX 1254 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
2 WIX 51323 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
1 WIX 51010 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
1 WIX 1468 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
1 WIX 51169 OIL FILTER NOT FOUND
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WIX 51422 OIL FILTER
WIX 51050 OIL FILTER
WIX 51457 OIL FILTER
WIX 33442 FUEL FILTER
WIX 51688 OIL FILTER
WIX 51797 OIL FILTER
WI1X 42434 OIL FILTER
WIX 33912 FUEL FILTER
WIX 57099 OIL FILTER
WIX 33810 FUEL FILTER
WIX 33189 FUEL FILTER
WIX 33079 FUEL FILTER

WIX 51455 FILTER/?

WIX 51457 FILTER/?

WIX 42254 AIR FILTER
WIX 46560 AIR FILTER
WIX 46569 AIR FILTER
NAPA 6569 AIR FILTER
NAPA 2047 AIR FILTER
NAPA 6280 AIR FILTER

FD3368 FUEL FILTER
A/C PF295

KOHLER 235116 AIR FILTER

NEW HOLLAND FILTERS

1930536 AIR FILTER
1930589 AIR FILTER
1930537 AIR FILTER

87801285 OIL FILTER
19309181 OIL FILTER
1930213 OIL FILTER

84399618 OIL FITLER

NAPA2961 OUT OF DATE

PA2310 OUT OF DATE
PA2359 OUT OF DATE
PA2317 OUT OF DATE

NOT FOUND

NONE IN STOCK $6.73
NONE IN STOCK -NO COST
NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NONE IN STOCK $22.99
NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

#11 ST/ROLLER/SOLD AT
AUCTION

#11 ST/ROLLER/SOLD AT
AUCTION

NONE STOCK $34.79

NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND

NEW/NONE iN STOCK-NO COST
NOT FOUND

NEW/1 IN STOCK $20.35

NOT FOUND
NOT FOUND
NOT FOUND

NOT FOUND
NOT FOUND
NOT FOUND

NONE IN STOCK $35.33
NOT FOUND
NOT FOUND
NONE IN STOCK $53.23

1@61.05
5@ 19.00
3@17.99
1@ 2598
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION ACCEPTING THE DONATION OF CERTAIN
REAL PROPERTY LOCATED AT 903 WEST 45™ STREET IN
THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK FROM THE
COMMISSIONER OF STATE LANDS; AND FOR OTHER
PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, pursuant to Resolution No. 8177, property located at 903 West 45"
Street in the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas was declared to be a public nuisance
and condemned on October 22, 2012; and

WHEREAS, on March 14, 2013 with the adoption of Resolution No. 8274, a
cleanup lien was certified for filing with the Pulaski County Tax Collector against the
subject property in the amount of $3,268.00, which lien has not been satistied by the
owner thereof, and

WHEREAS, neighborhood residents have maintained the property for several
years and have expressed their intent to continue to do so with the hope that the
property may possibly be used in the future as a pocket park; and

WHEREAS, considering the interest of local residents in utilizing the property
for neighborhood recreational purposes, the City of North Little Rock (“the City”)
requested that title to the property be conveyed to it in satisfaction of its unpaid lien;
and

WHEREAS, the Commissioner of State Lands desires to donate the subject real
property to the City of North Little Rock, and the City wishes to accept said land (see
letter from Commissioner of State Lands attached hereto as Exhibit “A”).

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the Mayor and City Clerk are hereby authorized to accept
certain real property located at 903 West 45" Street in the City of North Little Rock,
Pulaski County, Arkansas, from the Commission of State Lands, State of Arkansas, said
property being more particularly described as follows:

Lot 7, Block 7, Holead’s Addition to the City of North Little Rock,
Pulaski County, Arkansas (Parcel No. 33N1510007700).

SECTION 2: That upon acceptance of transfer documents (see Donation Deed

attached hereto as Exhibit “B”) and after a certificate of clear title is obtained, the City
will assume responsibility of said property, and the Director of Community Planning

1of2





shall record the same with the Pulaski County Circuit Clerk and file a copy of the
recorded deed with the City Clerk’s Office.

SECTION 3: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

SPONSORS: ATTEST:

Ald er/gbé /féf { Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

Ajtfcunan Beth Whlte

e

C. Jason Carfer, C1 orney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FIL

E(DJ&MM Codu
DATE iyl }—]‘5

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED B(; \-3\: ' V]/(\Q‘-&jfo‘g—e:
s
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John Thurston Commissioner of State Lands State of Arkansas
Records Division (501) 324-9492 Fax (501) 324-9421
Sales Division (501) 324-9422 Fax (501) 324-9424
109 State Capitol Building Little Rock, AR 72201

land@cosl.org  www.cosl.org

July 13, 2015

Mayor Joe Smith

City of North Little Rock
120 Main St.

North Little Rock, AR 72114

RE: Denation Deed No. 397

Dear Mayor Smith:

Please find enclosed a donation deed for the property you requested. The deed must be filed for
record with the Pulaski County Circuit Clerk’s office in order to convey title to the City of North

Little Rock. If you have any questions, please feel free to contact Lisa Pelion, a member of my
staff, at (501)324-9422.

i Thurston

Commissioner of State Lands

Sincerely,

IT/lp

Enclosure

EXHIBIT

‘A

Fiscal Division ¢ IT Division * Legal Division * Public Relations Division ¢ Records Division ¢ Sales Divison





Donation Deed No. 397

JOHN THURSTON
COMMISSIONER OF STATE LANDS
STATE OF ARKANSAS

Issued under the provisions of AC.A. § 22-6-501, as amended.

THE STATE OF ARKANSAS
WHEREAS, the following described lands situated in the county of PULASKI in the State of Arkansas, to wit

Parcel Number: 33N1510007700 Code: 90-4 Year: 2010

Description: *MUNICPAL LIEN* *903 W 45TH ST, N LITTLE ROCK, AR 72118* Section: Township: Range: Acreage: 0
Lot: 7 Block: 7 City: NORTH LITTLE ROCK Addition;: HOLEADS SD: 4

Were certified to Grantor, Commissioner of State Lands, by the aforementioned County for the non-payment of taxes
for the year set forth; and that the same has remained delinquent and unredeemed.

AND WHEREAS, it is understood that deeds issued under the provisions of4.C.A4. § 22-6-501 may contain restrictive
covenants or reservations. No such restrictions are applicable to the donation of the real property described herein,
except that should the governmental unit determine that the property can no longer be utilized, title to the property
shall revert to the Commissioner of State Lands, State of Arkansas.

AND WHEREAS, CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK having filed an application duly approved by the
Commissioner of State Lands according to the law,

AND WHEREAS, the Commissioner of State Lands Office has approved the use of this Land as stated in the
application for donation.

NOW THEREFORE, I, JOHN THURSTON, Commissioner of State Lands within and for the State of Arkansas, for
and in consideration of one dollar ($1.00) so paid, and by virtue of the authority in me vested by law, do hereby release
and quitclaim unto the said, CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, Grantee, And its heirs and assigns forever all right,
title and interest the State of Arkansas acquired under any forfeiture, sale or condemnation for taxes.

WITNESS MY HAND AND OFFICIAL SEAL, this July 13, 2015.

A Dhwa

John Thurston

Commigsion of éfa['e Lands

By: Lisa Pelton

Mail to;

EXHIBIT

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK
120 MAIN ST. 2 5 -’
NORTH LITTLE ROCK, AR 72114
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION CERTIFYING THE AMOUNT OF A CLEAN
UP LIEN TO BE FILED WITH THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX
COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTY
LOCATED AT 1805 BEECH STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH
LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, certain property located at 1805 Beech Street in the City of North
Little Rock, Arkansas was declared to be a public nuisance, and the property was
condemned on March 23, 2015 (see Resolution No. 8781 attached hereto as Exhibit “A”);
and

WHEREAS, Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-903 provides that if the owner(s) or lien
holder(s) of any lot or structure, after having been given seven (7) days’ notice in writing to
do so, refuses to remove, abate or eliminate any nuisance property, the City of North Little
Rock is authorized to do whatever is necessary to correct the conditions and charge the cost
thereof to the owner(s) of the real property; and

WHEREAS, according to the Pulaski County Assessor’s Office, Parcel No.
33N2250001600 described as 1805 Beech Street, North Little Rock, Arkansas, is owned by
Nerline Bunting, who, after receiving notice from the City regarding the conditions of the
property, has failed to abate the conditions; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. §§ 14-54-901, et seq. and Act 854 of
2007, the City of North Little Rock is authorized to abate the nuisance conditions, establish
a lien for the costs associated therewith, and collect the same in order to protect the health,
safety and welfare of the community.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That upon a hearing of the facts, the City Council hereby declares that
proper notice was given to the owner and lien holder(s) of the subject property to remove,
abate or eliminate the public nuisance conditions on the subject property located at 1805
Beech Street; more specifically described as:

Lot 16, Block 1, Industrial Extension Addition to the City of North Little
Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas. (Parcel No. 33N225001600, located at
1805 Beech Street and owned by Nerline Bunting.)

SECTION 2: That the City Council further declares that the owner and lien
holder(s) of the subject property failed to remove, abate or eliminate the public nuisance
conditions at the property after it was condemned pursuant to Resolution No. 8781 in the

time allowed by law, and that the City then abated the public nuisance conditions at a cost
of no less than $3,039.55. (See Affidavit attached hereto as Exhibit “B”.)

SECTION 3: That the City Council further declares that proper notice was given to
the owner and lien holder(s) of the subject property that a public hearing would be held on





July 27, 2015 (see Proof of Publication attached hereto as Exhibit “C”) to determine the
proper amount, if any, that should be filed as a cleanup lien pursuant to Act 854 of 2007.

SECTION 4: That the City Council further declares that upon presentation of facts
at a public hearing, the City is entitled to a priority clean up lien in the amount of $3,084.55
(costs of abatement plus an additional $45.00 filing fee for the subject lien certification)
against the subject property. This lien, as provided for in Arkansas Code Ann. § 14-54-903,
may be enforced and collected at any time within ten (10) years after the lien has been filed
in either one of the following manners as provided for in Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-904:

(1) By an action for foreclosure in the circuit court; or

(2) The amount so determined at this public hearing, plus ten percent (10%)
penalty for collection, to be certified to the Pulaski County Tax Collector to
be placed on the tax books as delinquent taxes and collected accordingly.

SECTION 35: That if the owner or lien holder(s) fail to pay the amount of the herein
certified clean-up lien in the time allowed by law, the City Attorney is hereby directed to
pursue any and all proper legal actions for collection of the amount of said lien plus all
applicable costs.

SECTION 6: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
severable, and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 7: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after its
passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

CLosd

Mayg/ Joe A. Smith e d Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

Amo FORM

C. Jason Carfer, CIW\KﬁBrBé'y

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b F ILED ®I

‘im (mi LCLJCQ\;

DATE T-Fsl- |5

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North thtle Rock, Arkansas

RECEIVED BY “% IV\O«»&«‘»UQ

S





20157 '1395 Received: 4/1/2015 8:51:49 AM
Rect d: 04/01/2015 08:55:35 AM Filed &
Recorded in Official Records of Larry Crane,
PULASK!I COUNTY CIRCUIT/COUNTY CLERK
Fees $25.00
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RESOLUTION NO. _ Y 7%/

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES
AND OTHER STRUCTURES LOCATED AT 1805 BEECH
STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK TO
CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING
SAID STRUCTURES; PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR
PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the buildings and structures whose location is set forth herein are
vacant and have become run down, dilapidated, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious,
unsafe, not fit for human habitation and detrimental to the public welfare of North Little
Rock citizens and residents; and

WHEREAS, the condition of such property constitutes a serious fire and health
hazard to the City of North Little Rock, and unless immediate actions are taken to
remedy this situation by removing, razing and abating said nuisance, there is a great
likelihood that the surrounding property may be destroyed by fire originating from such
unsafe and hazardous structures, and also that since structures are without proper
sanitary facilities and as such are unsafe and hazardous and a breeding place for rats,
rodents and other dangerous germ cariers of diseases, such buildings constitute a
serious hazard to the health and safety of the citizens of North Little Rock, and they
should be moved or razed for the purpose of eliminating such hazards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Council hereby declares the buildings, houses and
other structures located at the property identified in Section 2 below to be vacant and
run down, dilapidated, unsafe, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsanitary, a fire
hazard, a menace to abutting properties, with the current condition of said structures not
being fit for human habitation; and because of such conditions, the City Council
declares the same to be condemned as a public nuisance and is ordered abated, removed
or razed by the owner thereof.

SECTION 2: That the owner of record of the following described property is
hereby directed to raze the same or otherwise abate the said nuisance within thirty (30)
days after the posting of a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place upon the
structure constituting the nuisance described herein, to-wit:

Lot 16, Block 1, Industrial Extension Addition to the City
of North Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas. (Parcel
No. 33N22500011600 located at 1805 Beech Street and
owned by Nerline Bunting.) EXHIBIT

1 ”/q Py
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SECTION 3: If the aforementioned structures have not been razed and/or
removed within thirty (30) days after posting a true copy of this Resolution at a
conspicuous place upon the structures constituting the nuisance, or the nuisance
otherwise abated, the structures shall be torn down and/or removed by the Director of
Code Enforcement or his duly designated representative. Each day after the aforesaid
thirty (30) days in which said nuisance is not abated shall constitute a separate and
distinct offense punishable by a fine of $50.00 for each such separate and distinct
offense.

SECTION 4: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPR/?/ED: o
3/ %/’ N /}!j’-l‘f/ - f/%//{/,) ?;::;9/

Maydf Joe A. Smith

SP(?S.QR; ATTEST;
/ ) =

/KI‘ / 7/ C v

te (L & )ﬁz{%

Mayof Joe A. Smith Y o Di4ne Whitbey, City Clerk

/?Ii%}{l’if)? T?O'WI:.

- ‘m(“---_a-i; gl D
C. Jason Carter, City Altorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FILED /[, G0  AM, P.M.

| o B e
By \ "f‘--'*"‘-l E {_\ |_,\ VDA Al

DATE ! e, Lf!*/_’)

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

—F U b Qe

RECEIVEDBY _“/. ) Mk gn ¢
{ i
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STATE OF ARKANSAS} 3s
COUNTY OF PULASKI

I, Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
for the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas. do hereby

certify that the foregofhg instrument is a true and cogrect
copy of the original @gh Boo}( No. 4{?

f']edi,thls office on the A3 ddvo{' _ _r&j

BRLANNN





EXHIBIT

STATE OF ARKANSAS) Parcel # 33N2260001600 “ e
COUNTY OF PULASKI) ﬁ

AFFIDAVIT OF STATUTORY LIEN
Comes the City of North Little Rock, Arkansas by and through Tom Wadley, who states on oath that:

My name is Tom Wadley, | am the Director of Code Enforcement for the City of North Little Rock,
Arkansas (“the City"), and as such | am authorized to make this affidavit.

Acting pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-56-203, the North Little Rock City Coungil, on 3/1/2015,
Resolution # 8781 condemning a structure or structures located on the following described real property
located in the City of North Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas:

LEGAL DESCRIPTION AND ADDRESS OF PROPERTY

1805 N Beech
Lot 16 Block 1 Industrial Extension Addition,
City of North Little Rock
After notice of the above mentioned condemnation was given to the owner's and /or heirs Nerline
Bunting and due to the Owner’s and/or heirs failure to raze or remove the structure(s), the City removed
said structure(s) incurring a cost of 3039.55 An itemized account of this indebtedness is as follows:

DATE. TYPE OF WORK cosT
41112015 FILING FEE $25
12/09/13-6/17115  POSTAGE $36.9
38520 LEGAL ADVERTISING $17.65
6/17/2015 DEMOLITION $2900

ADMIN/COLLECTION FEE $60.00

TOTAL $

©
=1
]
©
2]
o

The City has made demand for payment and gave the debtor notice of the City's intent to file this lien and
the debtor has failed to make payment. No part of the debt has been paid and the City of North Little
Rock claims a lien on this real property, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-903(b), in the amount of
3039.55 to secure this indebtedness.

WITNESS my hand this ﬁﬂ \day of /i‘)/,{ (1 x/ 2015,
) .f

CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK

\- -
Tom Wadley
Director of Code Enforcement

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this -C:ﬁf[ Wayof (Aulr 20 (S

) A AT
\ 'NOTARY PUBLIC

< 4

__{8_/&2}0! el

My Commission Expires: |-
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES
AND OTHER STRUCTURES LOCATED AT 601 55™ TERRACE
DRIVE IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK TO
CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING
SAID STRUCTURES; PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR
PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the buildings and structures whose location is set forth herein are
vacant and have become run down, dilapidated, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious,
unsafe, not fit for human habitation and detrimental to the public welfare of North Little
Rock citizens and residents; and

WHEREAS, the condition of such property constitutes a serious fire and health
hazard to the City of North Little Rock, and unless immediate actions are taken to
remedy this situation by removing, razing and abating said nuisance, there is a great
likelihood that the surrounding property may be destroyed by fire originating from such
unsafe and hazardous structures, and also that since structures are without proper
sanitary facilities and as such are unsafe and hazardous and a breeding place for rats,
rodents and other dangerous germ carriers of diseases, such buildings constitute a
serious hazard to the health and safety of the citizens of North Little Rock, and they
should be moved or razed for the purpose of eliminating such hazards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Council hereby declares the buildings, houses and
other structures located at the property identified in Section 2 below to be vacant and
run down, dilapidated, unsafe, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsanitary, a fire
hazard, a menace to abutting properties, with the current condition of said structures not
being fit for human habitation; and because of such conditions, the City Council
declares the same to be condemned as a public nuisance and is ordered abated, removed
or razed by the owner thereof.

SECTION 2: That the owner of record of the following described property is
hereby directed to raze the same or otherwise abate the said nuisance within thirty (30)
days after the posting of a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place upon the
structure constituting the nuisance described herein, to-wit:

Lot 7, Block 1, Bradford Place Subdivision in the City of North Little

Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas. (Parcel No. 33N0390000700 located
at 601 55" Terrace Drive and owned by Curtis Mclvor.)
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SECTION 3: If the aforementioned structures have not been razed and/or
removed within thirty (30) days after posting a true copy of this Resolution at a
conspicuous place upon the structures constituting the nuisance, or the nuisance
otherwise abated, the structures shall be torn down and/or removed by the Director of
Code Enforcement or his duly designated representative. Each day after the aforesaid
thirty (30) days in which said nuisance is not abated shall constitute a separate and
distinct offense punishable by a fine of $50.00 for each such separate and distinct
offense.

SECTION 4: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

CLORA

Maym/ Joe A. Smith Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

Af??@i() FQ;Z:

C. Jason Carfer, City Aftorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

F ILED

(_ADER (Eﬁ‘l 1 DL A
DATE !’ 7- ?,\- \ 5

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
Nortthttlg Rock, Arkansas

RECEWED\BX \‘7\5] }/‘L(M-Sz"‘géb’

20f2





A ~/5-110
The Clity of North Little Rock

lR 701 WEST 20TH STHEET
TOM WADLEY NOATH LITTLE ROCK ARKANSAS 72114
HORTH LT TLE ROCK]

DIRECTOR S01-791.9501 » Fiax £01.701.8584
NLRCodAEN o ey tront . roapni'erocs ar q.re

CODE ENFORCEMENT DEPARTMENT

July 15, 2015

Mayor Smith
City Council Members

Re: 601 55" Terrace Dr.
Lot 7 Block 1 Bradford Place
City of North Little Rock, AR

Owners: Curtis Mclvor
North Little Rock, AR

Dear Mayor Smith;

On January 9. 2015 officer C. Williams received notice that a fire had
occurred at the above address. | went by and conducted an exterior
inspection and it was determined that the structure is unsafe for human
habitation. Property was red tagged and the owner of record was mailed
notice to contact officer Cedric Williams within seven days.

May 28, Cedric Williams 2015 called Mrs. Mclvor and left message for her
to call me and advise me what they are going to do with this property. Code
Enforcement never got a response to the phone calls or notices mailed. To-
date the property remains in the same condition.

The condemnation procedures were started due to the condition of the
house. Owners and/or heirs and all interested parties were given notice of
City Council for the July 27th 2015 Hearing date. Notices were mailed by
certified and regular mail, legal notice ran in the newspaper, and were also
posted on the property. This structure is considered to be unfit for human
habitation.

This property constitutes a public nuisance; it is the recommendation of the
North Little Rock Code Enforcement Department that this structure be
considered for condemnation.

Felecia McHenry
Code Enforcement Officer
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES
AND OTHER STRUCTURES LOCATED AT 2225 FENDLEY
DRIVE IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK TO
CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING
SAID STRUCTURES; PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR
PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the buildings and structures whose location is set forth herein are
vacant and have become run down, dilapidated, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious,
unsafe, not fit for human habitation and detrimental to the public welfare of North Little
Rock citizens and residents; and

WHEREAS, the condition of such property constitutes a serious fire and health
hazard to the City of North Little Rock, and unless immediate actions are taken to
remedy this situation by removing, razing and abating said nuisance, there is a great
likelihood that the surrounding property may be destroyed by fire originating from such
unsafe and hazardous structures, and also that since structures are without proper
sanitary facilities and as such are unsafe and hazardous and a breeding place for rats,
rodents and other dangerous germ carriers of diseases, such buildings constitute a
serious hazard to the health and safety of the citizens of North Little Rock, and they
should be moved or razed for the purpose of eliminating such hazards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Council hereby declares the buildings, houses and
other structures located at the property identified in Section 2 below to be vacant and
run down, dilapidated, unsafe, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsanitary, a fire
hazard, a menace to abutting properties, with the current condition of said structures not
being fit for human habitation; and because of such conditions, the City Council
declares the same to be condemned as a public nuisance and is ordered abated, removed
or razed by the owner thereof.

SECTION 2: That the owner of record of the following described property is
hereby directed to raze the same or otherwise abate the said nuisance within thirty (30)
days after the posting of a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place upon the
structure constituting the nuisance described herein, to-wit:

Lot 10, Block 3, Pike Plaza Heights Subdivision in the City of North
Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas. (Parcel No. 33N2390003000
located at 2225 Fendley Drive and owned by Rafael Guarionex
DeCastro.)
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SECTION 3: If the aforementioned structures have not been razed and/or
removed within thirty (30) days after posting a true copy of this Resolution at a
conspicuous place upon the structures constituting the nuisance, or the nuisance
otherwise abated, the structures shall be torn down and/or removed by the Director of
Code Enforcement or his duly designated representative. Each day after the aforesaid
thirty (30) days in which said nuisance is not abated shall constitute a separate and
distinct offense punishable by a fine of $50.00 for each such separate and distinct
offense.

SECTION 4: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

57 i,

MayorJ A Smith — Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

L

C. Jason Car{er, Clty\ﬁﬁ/omey

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FiLED [ 50 am. : PM.
NS 0 0 ) .

By

1-U=15

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Bock, Arkansas

RECEIVED l§¥ 7{) : ”/ K\W»&mgé
"

DATE

20f2





The City of North Little Rock
f-15=11)

hLR 701 WEST 20TH STREET

TOM WADLEY NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72114

DIRECTOR 501-791-8581 » Fax 601-791-85a4

W NLRCodeEnlorcemenl @northlitleradcar gov
CODE ENFORCEMENT DEPARTMENT

June 16, 2015

Mayor Smith
City Council Members

Re: 2225 Fendley
Lot 10 Block 3 Pike Plaza Heights
City of North Little Rock, AR

Owner: Rafael Guarionex DeCastro Mortgage Holder: OneBanc
Little Rock, AR Little Rock, AR
Dear Mayor Smith;

January 2", 2014 Officer C. Williams conducted an exterior inspection of this property the
property is an apartment complex which consist of six apartments, four of which sustained fire
damage and was determined to be unfit for human habitation, the roofing system was severely
damaged. The structure was red-tagged and notices were mailed to owners of record
according to the Pulaski County Assessors.

January 2014 Mr. DeCastro acknowledged the notice from our office and forwarded information
showing that he had filed a claim with his insurance company. Mr. DeCastro was also advised
to keep the property secured and the grass cut. During the next few months follow-up
inspections showed the apartments to still be unsecured and grass uncut. Mr. DeCastro was
again contacted and advised that he still had to maintain the property. Mr. DeCastro stated that
he was having trouble obtaining his funds from the bank that were released from the insurance
company.

July 2014 Mr. DeCastro, Officer C. Williams and | conducted a follow-up inspection of the
properties, the structure has continued to deteriorate from water damage due the damage to the
roofing area caused by the fire. Mr. DeCastro was advised that due to the hazardous condition
of the structure we would need to start the condemnation proceedings. The owners of record
and/or heirs were mailed a Notice of the City Council hearing scheduled for September 22nd,
2014 notices were mailed by certified and regular mail to all interested parties and posted on the
property notifications were also advertised in the newspaper.

September 22™, 2014 Structure went before City Council it was called and held pending
possible sale of the property. Mr. Decastro also had pending court dates, each court
appearance Mr. Descastro talked about other pending sales for the properties falling through.
He was ultimately fined $10,000.

City Council called the legislation up 6 times and it was finally dismissed from the docket. A
new City Council date was issued for July 27", 2015. Notices were mailed by certified and
regular mail to all interested parties and posted on the property notifications were also
advertised in the newspaper.

This structure has been vacant since January 2014. This structure is considered to be
extremely hazardous and a public nuisance. Due to the condition of this structure it is the
recommendation of the North Little Rock Code Enforcement Department that the structure be
considered for condemnation.

Felecia McHenry
Code Enforcement Officer
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES
AND OTHER STRUCTURES LOCATED AT 2800 JOHN
ASHLEY DRIVE IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK TO
CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING
SAID STRUCTURES; PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR
PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the buildings and structures whose location is set forth herein are
vacant and have become run down, dilapidated, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious,
unsafe, not fit for human habitation and detrimental to the public welfare of North Little
Rock citizens and residents; and

WHEREAS, the condition of such property constitutes a serious fire and health
hazard to the City of North Little Rock, and unless immediate actions are taken to
remedy this situation by removing, razing and abating said nuisance, there is a great
likelihood that the surrounding property may be destroyed by fire originating from such
unsafe and hazardous structures, and also that since structures are without proper
sanitary facilities and as such are unsafe and hazardous and a breeding place for rats,
rodents and other dangerous germ carriers of diseases, such buildings constitute a
serious hazard to the health and safety of the citizens of North Little Rock, and they
should be moved or razed for the purpose of eliminating such hazards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Council hereby declares the buildings, houses and
other structures located at the property identified in Section 2 below to be vacant and
run down, dilapidated, unsafe, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsanitary, a fire
hazard, a menace to abutting properties, with the current condition of said structures not
being fit for human habitation; and because of such conditions, the City Council
declares the same to be condemned as a public nuisance and is ordered abated, removed
or razed by the owner thereof.

SECTION 2: That the owner of record of the following described property is
hereby directed to raze the same or otherwise abate the said nuisance within thirty (30)
days after the posting of a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place upon the
structure constituting the nuisance described herein, to-wit:

Lot 21, Block 2, Pike Plaza Heights Subdivision in the City of North
Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas. (Parcel No. 33N2390002200
located at 2800 John Ashley Drive and owned by Rafael Guarionex
DeCastro.)
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SECTION 3: If the aforementioned structures have not been razed and/or
removed within thirty (30) days after posting a true copy of this Resolution at a
conspicuous place upon the structures constituting the nuisance, or the nuisance
otherwise abated, the structures shall be torn down and/or removed by the Director of
Code Enforcement or his duly designated representative. Each day after the aforesaid
thirty (30) days in which said nuisance is not abated shall constitute a separate and
distinct offense punishable by a fine of $50.00 for each such separate and distinct
offense.

SECTION 4: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

@ ATTEST:
ﬁ g Z/mf%
Mayo/ Joe A. Smith Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

C. Jason Cdtter, City Attorney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

riLep [0/ 590 am. P.M.
wc&-fv Em Cote

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas

DATE

RECEIVED BY
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R“lﬁ ) /‘i The City of North Little Rock
rLR 701 WEST 29TH STREET
TOM WADLEY NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS 72114
DIRECTOR DRTH v 501-791-8501 » Fax 01-791-0584
NLRCodaeEnlorcamen! @ norhlitilarock.ar gov

CODE ENFORCEMENT DEPARTMENT

July 16, 2015

Mayor Smith
City Council Members

Re: 2800 John Ashley
Lot 21 Block 2 Pike Plaza Heights
City of North Little Rock, AR

Owner: Rafael Guarionex DeCastro Mortgage Holder: OneBanc
Little Rock, AR Little Rock, AR
Dear Mayor Smith;

June 21t 2013 Officer C. Williams conducted an exterior inspection of this property
after receiving complaints regarding the status of the property, the property is an
apartment complex which consist of twelve apartments, all of which have been
vandalized holes have been kicked in every wall and ceilings, all wiring and plumbing
has been stripped from the apartments, all heating and air systems have been stolen as
well. Officer Williams determined the units to be unfit for human habitation, the
structure was red-tagged and notices were mailed to owners of record according to the
Pulaski County Assessors.

January 2014 Mr. DeCastro, Officer C. Williams and | conducted a follow-up inspection
of the property. Mr. DeCastro was advised that due to the condition of these structures
we would move forward with the condemnation proceedings. Mr. DeCastro requested
additional time to possibly sell the property, he was granted the additional time. He was
advised that he needed to keep the property secured, follow-up inspections showed all
of the apartments still unsecured, Officer Williams tried to make contact with Mr.
DeCastro through phones calls and mail to advise him of the status, however never
returned any phone calls or responded to notices.

April 9" 2014 Officer William located Mr. DeCastro at his place of business and issued
him a citation for Property Maintenance Violations and Public Nuisance court date was
May 15", 2014 for Plea.

July 17", 2014 Mr. DeCastro was issued notice of City Council the owners of record
and/or heirs were mailed a Notice of the City Council hearing scheduled for September
22nd, 2014 notices were mailed by certified and regular mail to all interested parties and
posted on the property notifications were also advertised in the newspaper.

September 224, 2014 Structure went before City Council it was called and held pending
a sale. Mr. Decastro also had pending court dates, each court appearance Mr.
Descastro talked about other pending sales for the properties falling through. He was
ultimately fined $10,000.

City Council called the legislation up 6 times and it was dismissed. A new City Council
date was issued for July 27th, 2015. Notices were mailed by certified and regular mail to
all interested parties and posted on the property notifications were also advertised in the
newspaper.





City Council called the legislation up 6 times and it was finally dismissed from the
docket. A new City Council date was issued for July 27, 2015. Notices were mailed by
certified and regular mail to all interested parties and posted on the property
notifications were also advertised in the newspaper.

This structure has been vacant since March 2012. This structure is considered to be a
public nuisance. Due to the condition of this structure it is the recommendation of the
North Little Rock Code Enforcement Department that the structure be considered for
condemnation.

Felecia McHenry
Code Enforcement Officer
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN BUILDINGS, HOUSES
AND OTHER STRUCTURES LOCATED AT 522 WEST 22N
STREET IN THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK TO
CONSTITUTE A PUBLIC NUISANCE AND CONDEMNING
SAID STRUCTURES; PROVIDING A PERIOD OF TIME FOR
PROPERTY OWNER TO ABATE SAID NUISANCE; AND FOR
OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, the buildings and structures whose location is set forth herein are
vacant and have become run down, dilapidated, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious,
unsafe, not fit for human habitation and detrimental to the public welfare of North Little
Rock citizens and residents; and

WHEREAS, the condition of such property constitutes a serious fire and health
hazard to the City of North Little Rock, and unless immediate actions are taken to
remedy this situation by removing, razing and abating said nuisance, there is a great
likelihood that the surrounding property may be destroyed by fire originating from such
unsafe and hazardous structures, and also that since structures are without proper
sanitary facilities and as such are unsafe and hazardous and a breeding place for rats,
rodents and other dangerous germ carriers of diseases, such buildings constitute a
serious hazard to the health and safety of the citizens of North Little Rock, and they
should be moved or razed for the purpose of eliminating such hazards.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That the City Council hereby declares the buildings, houses and
other structures located at the property identified in Section 2 below to be vacant and
run down, dilapidated, unsafe, unsightly, dangerous, obnoxious, unsanitary, a fire
hazard, a menace to abutting properties, with the current condition of said structures not
being fit for human habitation; and because of such conditions, the City Council
declares the same to be condemned as a public nuisance and is ordered abated, removed
or razed by the owner thereof.

SECTION 2: That the owner of record of the following described property is
hereby directed to raze the same or otherwise abate the said nuisance within thirty (30)
days after the posting of a true copy of this Resolution at a conspicuous place upon the
structure constituting the nuisance described herein, to-wit:

The North 61.6 feet of Lots 12, 13, 14 and 15, Block 3, Rose Hill
Subdivision in the City of North Little Rock, Pulaski County, Arkansas,
more particularly described as follows: Beginning at the Northwest
corner of said Lot 15; thence South along the West line of said Lot 15 a
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distance of 61.6 feet; thence East parallel to the North line of said Lot 15
a distance of 89.5 feet to the intersection of the West right of way line of
the Missouri Pacific Railroad; thence Northwesterly along said West
right of way line a distance of 67.8 feet to a point on the North line of
said Lots 13, 14 and 15 a distance of 62.3 feet to the point of beginning.
(Parcel Nos. 33N2540003900 and 33N2540003800 located at 522 West
22" Street and owned by Gloryland Baptist Church.)

SECTION 3: If the aforementioned structures have not been razed and/or
removed within thirty (30) days after posting a true copy of this Resolution at a
conspicuous place upon the structures constituting the nuisance, or the nuisance
otherwise abated, the structures shall be torn down and/or removed by the Director of
Code Enforcement or his duly de51gnated representative. Each day after the aforesaid
thirty (30) days in which said nuisance is not abated shall constitute a separate and
distinct offense punishable by a fine of $50.00 for each such separate and distinct
offense.

SECTION 4: That the provisions of this Resolution are hereby declared to be
severable and if any section, phrase or provision shall be declared or held invalid, such
invalidity shall not affect the remainder of the sections, phrases or provisions.

SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

SPOW///M/ |

Mayordoe A. Smith— Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

f/mié

C. Jason Ca er City Atforney

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

FILFD /C’ A AM

patE___" - '21-15

7 of Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector
North Little Rock, Arkansas
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The City of North Little Rock

701 WEST #0TH STREE T

TOM WADLEY NORTH LITTLE ROCK ARKANSAS 72114

DIRECTOR S01-701-8501 » Fax LO1.701.858 4
BURCodafn'scoment o oot erocs angoy
CODE ENFORCEMENT DEPARTMENT
July 15, 2015
Mayor Smith

City Council Members

Re: 522 W 22nd
Lot 12 Block 3 Rose Hill Subdivision
City of North Little Rock, AR

Owners: Gloryland Baptist Church
North Little Rock, AR

Dear Mayor Smith;

On March 27, 2015 North Little Rock Fire Department notified Officer C. Williams that a
fire had occurred at the above address. Officer Williams conducted an inspection of the
building, the fire marshals were also there conducting an investigation. The building was
severely fire damaged. Officer Williams Red tagged the building and mailed notification
of red tag to owners of record Gloryland Baptist Church. Code Enforcement has not
been able to make contact with anyone associated with the Church, all notification
return unclaimed. North Little Rock Utility Department show utilities were last on Sept of
2012.

The condemnation procedures were started due to the condition of the Building.
Owners and/or heirs and all interested parties were given notice of City Council for the
July 27", 2015 Hearing date. Notices were mailed by certified and regular mail, legal
notice ran in the newspaper, and were also posted on the property. This structure is
considered to be a Public Nuisance, a safety and a health hazard and is unfit for human
habitation.

This property constitutes a public nuisance; it is the recommendation of the North Little
Rock Code Enforcement Department that this structure be considered for
condemnation.

Felecia McHenry
Code Enforcement Officer
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RESOLUTION NO.

A RESOLUTION APPROVING AND CERTIFYING AMOUNTS
OF LIENS TO BE FILED WITH THE PULASKI COUNTY TAX
COLLECTOR AGAINST CERTAIN REAL PROPERTIES IN
THE CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS AS A
RESULT OF GRASS CUTTING EXPENSES AND ABATEMENT
OF OTHER NUISANCES; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES.

WHEREAS, Section 8.3.1 of North Little Rock Municipal Code (“NLRMC”)
Chapter 8 (Nuisance Abatement and Property Maintenance), requires all property
owners and occupants within the municipal boundaries of the City of North Little Rock
(“the City”) to cut weeds, grass and abate other nuisances and unsanitary conditions on
their property; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-901, the City has the authority
to do whatever is necessary to correct the unsightly and unsanitary conditions and to
charge the costs thereof to the owners of lots or property who neglect or refuse to
remove, abate or eliminate any weed or grass conditions after having been given seven
(7) days written notice to do so; and

WHEREAS, in accordance with Ark. Code Ann. § 14-54-901, the City of North
Little Rock has corrected conditions existing on certain lots or other real property
within the City of North Little Rock and is entitled to compensation pursuant to Ark.
Code Ann. § 14-54-904;

WHEREAS, the City has demanded payment in the amount allowed by law
from the property owners where work was performed and notified said owners of the
City’s intent to file a lien against their properties; and

WHEREAS, said property owners have failed to make payment, no part of the
debt has been paid, and the City claims a lien on the herein referenced properties (listed
on Exhibit “A” attached hereto) pursuant to Ark. Code Ann. §§ 14-54-901 and 14-54-
903; and

WHEREAS, state law also provides for a lien against the subject properties,
with the amount of lien to be determined by the City Council at a hearing held after
notice to the owner(s) thereof by certified mail or publication (see Exhibit “A” attached
hereto), with said amount (plus a ten percent collection penalty) to be thereafter
certified to the Pulaski County Tax Collector; and

WHEREAS, a hearing for the purpose of determining such liens has been set for
6:05 p.m. on July 13, 2015, in order to allow for service of the attached notice of same
upon the listed property owners, by certified mail or publication as is necessary.





NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF NORTH LITTLE ROCK, ARKANSAS:

SECTION 1: That after notice to property owners, a public hearing was held at
6:05 p.m. on July 13, 2015, for the purpose of determining the amount of liens, if any,
to be filed against certain real property as the result of grass cutting and abatement of
other nuisances by the City of North Little Rock.

SECTION 2: That after said public hearing, and upon the verification of the
Director of the North Little Rock Code Enforcement Department, the amounts listed on
Exhibit “A” are hereby certified as obligations that are owed to the City and proper to
be filed with the Pulaski County Treasurer and Assessor as liens against the real
property associated therewith.

SECTION 3: That the Director of the Code Enforcement is hereby ordered to
file liens as provided in this resolution; except that, prior to submission, he will update
the list to remove any lien amounts that have been paid in full prior to forwarding the
list to the County.

SECTION 4: That the Director of the Code Enforcement is authorized to
execute and file such documents as are necessary to release any lien that is paid in full.

SECTION 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect from and after
its passage and approval.

PASSED: APPROVED:

Mayor Joe A. Smith

ATTEST:

L s,

Mayor oe A. Smith 4 Diane Whitbey, City Clerk

/R?® A FILED Z_Q ,’_542 AM.

C.Jason Caj;l/ er Clty Attomey

By
DATE l-tl- s

Diane Whitbey, City Clerk and Collector

North Little Rock, Arkansas
RECEIVED BY I)‘.‘\/l ' =
7 .

PREPARED BY THE OFFICE OF THE CITY ATTORNEY/b

.





EXHIBIT “A”

LEGAL NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING

Notice is hereby given that lien amounts upon the following described lands will be
considered by the North Little Rock City Council at their meeting on _July 27, 2015, in the
North Little Rock Council Chambers. The owner(s) has the right to contest the lien amount
before the City Council at the public hearing.

33N2730002600

1230 W. 10", NLR
Alfred Boyd

Lot 08 Blk 3, Giles Add.
Amt. 185.00

33N2850008500
1000 E. 13", NLR
BDI Holdings

Lot 8 Blk 7, E.Central
Amt. 185.00

33N2850008700

1004 E. 13" NLR
Marian Hawkins/

Akliba Lambert

Lot 7 Blk 10, East Central
Amt. 185.00

33N2260006300

1301 E. 16", NLR
Rosalee/Wade Franklin
Lot 9 Blk 5, Industrial
Amt. 185.00

33N2260006500

1303 E. 16", NLR
Diversified Land Corp.
Lot 11 Blk 5, Industrial
Amt. 185.00

33N2260006700

1305 E. 16™ NLR
Bobby Saylor

Lot 13 Blk 5, Industrial
Amt. — 185.00

33N2260006900

1307 E. 16", NLR
Cheryl Ballard

Lot 15 Blk 5, Industrial
Amt. 185.00

33N2530002500

1419 W. Short 17", NLR
Henry/Monteen Purifoy
Lot 8-9 Blk 4, Maloney
Amt. 185.00

33N2520008100

1520 W Short 17", NLR
Joseph T Burroughs

Lot 6 Blk 8, Laskers
Amt. 185.00

33N2520006600

1600 W. Short 17", NLR
Evelyn K Miller

Lot 1 Blk 7, Laskers
Amt. 185.00

33N2550007600

623 W. 18", NLR

Hi-Five Properties

Lot 3 Blk 7, College Pk N1
Amt. 185.00

33N2570000200

704 W. 18" NLR
JNYLECO

Lot 1-2 Blk 1, College Pk N1
Amt. 185.00

33N2560001300
720 W. 22", NLR
Adriel S Martin

¢/o Jeremy Brown
Lot 2 Blk 3, Schaers
Amt. 185.00

33N2560001200
722 W. 22" NLR
Elvis L Allen

Lot 1 Blk 3, Schaers
Amt. 185.00

33N2350000600

612 W. 23" NLR
Calvin Watson

Lot 3-4 Blk 0, Plainview
Amt. 185.00

33N1880008500

624 W. 36™ NLR

MCC Investments

Lot 1 Blk 4, Moores Glendale
Amt. 185.00

33N1770012400

721 W. 36", NLR

Lattie M Ramsey

Lot 7 Blk 16, Booher Add.
Amt. 185.00

33N1410011500
1223 W. 39" NLR

Marlena Yvette Thrower

PT SE NW BEG 500 FT E& S 150 FT
FROM NW COR FINKE TR TH E 75 FT,S
1 50 FT,W 75 FT,N 150 FT TO BEG 22
2N 12W

Amt. 185.00





33N0340002500

208 W. 51, NLR

Brent S Wood

Lot 25 Blk 0, Farmere 2™
Amt. 185.00

33N2550008200

1904 Allen, NLR

Hi Five Properties LLC
Lot 9 Blk 7, College Pk N1
Amt. 185.00

33N3080021700

N Beech, NLR
Fredia/Rodney Cummings
Lot 28 Blk 21, E. Argenta
Amt. 185.00

23N0610013900

4514 Boyer, NLR

John C Grise

Lot 0 Blk 44

J.L. Atkins School Sub.
Amt. 185.00

23N0630000901
Broadway, NLR

JSS & Associates
Lot 5 Blk 2, Greenlea
Amt. 500.00

23N0630000900
Broadway (Power line
between Mills & Rose)
Money In the Bank

Lot 1 Blk B Rich Acres
Amt. $500.00

33N2550008800

205 College Park, NLR
Eurydice S Stanley

Lot 15 Blk 7, College Pk N1
Amt. 185.00

33N2550006900

212 College Park, NLR

Ida Mae/Latonya Hardin
Lot 10 Blk 6, College Pk N1
Amt. 185.00

23N0610033100

4901 Coral, NLR
Jarvis C.Kolen, Sr.

Lot G Blk 95

J.L. Atkins School Sub.
Amt. 185.00

33N2700014900

1215 Division, NLR
Shirley Hunt

Lot 3 Blk 8, Baring Cross
Amt. 185.00

33N2430001200
2505 Franklin, NLR
Johnny Williams, JR
Lot 12 Blk 0, Carman
Amt. 185.00

33N2430000400

2518 Franklin, NLR
Jearlean Wade McFadden
Lot 4 Blk 0 Carman

Amt. 185.00

23N0460030000

N. G,NLR

Hayden Mgt Group
Lot 19 Blk 15, Dixie
Amt. 185.00

23N0710015500

203 Glenview, NLR
R&L Automatic Services
Lot 2 Blk 24, Poe

Amt. 185.00

23N0650024200

920 Graham, NLR
Gregory B McKinley, Sr.
Lot 6 Blk 10, Greenlea
Amt. 185.00

23N0650010900

807 Greenlea, NLR

H. Dale Scates

Lot 12 BIk 5, Greenlea
Amt. 185.00

23N0650011000

809 Greenlea, NLR
GKATBG LLC

c/o Karl/Trudean Brown
Lot 13 Blk 5, Greenlea
Amt. 185.00

23N0460026800

N. I, NLR

Carrie Honorable
Lot 10 Blk 14, Dixie
Amt. 185.00

23N0460001800
1006 N. I, NLR
Landra Harris

Lot 22 Blk 1, Dixie
Amt. 185.00

33N3170000300

326 Johnson, NLR
Aquila Jones

Lot 2 Blk 1, Washington
Amt. 185.00

33N3170000200

328 Johnson, NLR
James/Carol Wilson

Lot 1 Blk 1, Washington
Amt. 185.00





33N0510002000
5000 Longview, NLR
Frederick L Dyer

Lot 20 Blk 0, Fulton
Amt. 185.00

33N2570002600
Marion, NLR
Gloryland Bapt. Church
Lot 10 Blk 2, Holts
Amt. 185.00

23N0610013500
412 Middle, NLR
Renita Jackson
Lot 0 Blk 43
Amt. 185.00

33N2460010700

1901 Moss, NLR

Tess Loux

Lot 6 Blk 10, Missouri Pacific
Amt. 185.00

23N0710017900

202 Mt. Olive, NLR
Ehab Sulaiman Albalawi
Lot 31 Blk 24, Poe

Amt. 185.00

33N2890108200

1307 N. Olive, NLR
Bobby Gatewood

Lot 9 Blk 8, Davis Add.
Amt. 185.00

33N2710003900

1000 Park, NLR

Roy Odell Inc.

Lot 1 Blk 5, Vestal View
Amt. 185.00

23N0760002200

113 Parkdale, NLR
Maryland Enterprises
Lot 23 Blk 0, Parkdale
Amt. 185.00

33N1110000202
2200 Parkway

REA Rental — Keith Scott

PT LT B, A D REA ADDN MPDA PT NE
NE SECT 21-2N-12 COM SE COR LT A
LANSPARK ADDN OF NLR TH
$19*00'03"E 98.80'
$19%32'43"E70.60' $19+29'41"E73.32"
$22%28'33"E52.80' TO POB TH
$22%28'33"E110.58"
S62%06'54"W48.93' N26*21'00"W
115.46' N67*31'27"E56.51' TO POB
21-2N-12

Amt. 185.00

33N0710002400

5302 Pike Ave., NLR

Vel Donna Marie Weaver
Lot 24 Blk 0, Hill Heights
Amt. 185.00

23N0710004200

615 Poe, NLR

Samaritan Hill Bapt. Church
Lot 6 Blk 11, Poe

Amt. 185.00

33N2890109000

1322 N Poplar, NLR
Randy Bogard/

George Bates III

Lot 1 Blk 9, Davis Addn
Amt. 185.00

33N2110050900

1920 N Poplar, NLR
God Is Love Church

Lot 12 Blk 60, N Argenta
Amt, 185.00

23N0770014700

601 Protho, NLR
Walter/Dollie Faux
Lot 0 Blk 233, Protho
Amt. 185.00

33N1510001500
2624 Schaer, NLR
Oromis Corp.

Lot 1 Blk 2, Holeads
Amt. 185.00

23N0710002600
307 Short, NLR
Charles Calmes

Lot 1 Blk 8, Poe
Amt. 185.00

23N0710002700
309 Short, NLR
Andrew Jackson
Lot 2 Blk 8, Poe
Amt. 185.00

23N0710006100
320 Short, NLR
Krista McLeod
Lot 5 Blk 16, Poe
Amt. 185.00

23N0710005900

322 Short, NLR
William Sr./JoAnn Keel
Lot 3 Blk 16, Poe

Amt. 185.00

23N0700005000

1310 Van, NLR
Kenneth/Sheila Ferrell
Lot 11 Blk 6, Ratterees
Amt. 185.00

33N2850002800

1404 ¥2 N. Vine, NLR
Vera Jenkins

Lot 2 Blk 5, E Central
Amt. 185.00





